安小雅 雅思口语素材

第一套 Part2 (高分版串联) 适合学生党使用

关于素材使用方法和答疑

客服的微信提供素材售后服务,有疑问都可以在微信上询问哦!在微信通讯录搜:安小雅。即可找到客服[~]

店主开通的福利微信公众号: 安小雅

公众号会在每场考试后发布考试答案回忆,还有最新考试资讯,雅思技巧等等福利哦!

口语题库适用范围

口语题库全球一致,各个国家地区都一样。适用于笔试,机考,UKVI和 IELTS Online。

雅思考官一对一

我们跟多位 10 年以上经验的资深雅思考官合作,提供口语/写作一对一私教服务,教学内容可自定义。 行业金字塔尖师资水平,有意请联系微信客服。

串联版 Part2 目录以及使用说明

串联版 Part2 指的是一篇范文回答多个话题。具体分类看看以下目录就知道了。

翻译里标黄的部分是与其他文章相同的句子,共用的。

但是有些话题问的方向不一样,如果用同一篇范文来回答的话会有跑题嫌疑。所以有些串联的话题我们还是写了 2-3 篇范文,根据问题的问法稍作了一些修改。但是大体上的内容和思路都是一致的[~]

如果我觉得素材有错怎么办?

我们的素材都是经过店主和外教一起编写和检查过的哦! 您可以放心!

其实外国人在生活中有一些常用的口头上的表达,看起来很奇怪但实际并没有错的,国内老师也不会懂这些。所以呀! 如果你觉得素材有错,我们是非常欢迎您来询问我们滴!千万不要觉得不好意思哦!下面举两个例子:

"Anna is two years my elder." 安娜比我大两岁。"She is four months my younger" 她比我小四个月。

这是一种比较现代的说法,当然我们平时都会讲"Anna is two years older than me"和"She is four months younger than me."但其实外国人都会用前者多一些的。

"the majority of the girls were content discussing about how handsome or how affluent their boyfriends were." 女孩子们都在热烈地讨论他们的男朋友有多帅。

这是现代英语的另一个特征,就是外国人在口头上都常常会省略掉介词。这里就把 were content with discussing 的 with 去掉了。这在口语上是完全没问题的,但大家在写作中就尽量要避免哦。

目录

(一) 外国留学生	
01-02:成功的同学(新题)&成功的经营者(新题)	5
03:中文很好的外国人(新题)	6
(二)公园烧烤派对	7
04-05: 刺激的活动(新题)& 聚会(新题)	7
06-07: 逛公园(新题)& 感到累的活动(新题)	8
(三) 奖学金	
08-09:改变人生的时期(新题)&困难任务(新题)	
10: 等待美好事情(新题)	
(四) 备考搭子	
11-12: 没见过的有趣陌生人(新题)&想法有趣的人(新题)	
(五)家庭旅行照片	
13-14: 喜欢的照片(新题)& 一幅画(新题)	
(六)宿舍规定	
15-16: 有益的广告(新题)& 重要规定(新题)	
17: 给他人建议(新题)	
(七) 拉萨	
18-19:感兴趣的地方(新题)&美丽的城市(新题)	
20: 想去的遥远之地	20
(八) AI	21
21-22: 感兴趣的科学领域(新题)& 感兴趣的工作	
23: 有用的发明	23
(九)明朝那些事儿	24
24-25: 感兴趣的历史时期(新题)& 多次阅读的书籍	
(十)新开的超市	
26-27: 糟糕服务(新题) & 新开的商店	
(十一) Gucci 围巾	
28-29: 昂贵的礼物 & 喜欢穿的衣服	
(十二)尾波冲浪	
32: 爱看的体育运动	

(十三)宿管阿姨	
33-34: 乐于助人的人 & 受欢迎的人	
	22
35-36: 玩过的游戏 & 印象深刻的儿时经历	
(十五) 过年回老家堵车	
37-38: 印象深刻的汽车旅行 & 得到错误信息的时刻	
39: 做重要决定的时刻	
(十六) 大唐不夜城	36
40-41: 人山人海之地 & 迷路	
+0 +1. 八山八海之地 & 史山	
(十七)春节包饺子	
42-43: 和小孩相处的时刻 & 喜欢的传统庆祝活动	
(十八) 有趣的邻居	40
(十八) 有趣的邻居	
44-45: 有趣的邻居 & 取U版豕的人	
(单独话题)	
46: 理想之家	
47: 公开发言	
48: 令你失望的电影	11
40: マ	
49: 电脑出问题(新题)	
50 : 喜欢烹饪的人(新题)	
51: 钦佩的运动员(新题)	ΛΤ
	······································

(一) 外国留学生

01-02: 成功的同学(新题)& 成功的经营者(新题)

Describe someone you studied with who is successful	Describe a person you know about who runs a
in his/her life.	successful business.
You should say:	You should say:
who this person is	How do you know about this person
where you studied together	What kind of business does he/she run
when you studied together	How long has the business been running
and explain why you think this person is successful	And explain why you think his/her business is
in his/her life.	successful.

I do know of a foreigner from school who is a successful entrepreneur, a student from Kazakhstan named Michael. It all started at our college's opening ceremony, where, as a select member among his peers, Michael shared his wisdom about study and life in general in fluent Chinese.

Seeing as we major in the same subject, Michael and I go to the same classes every week. He is friendly, goodlooking and a good communicator given his excellent Chinese. And I've been fortunate to have had several pleasant chats with him during the breaks. Michael told me that it was thanks to his father and his father's business that he is here in China and speaks Chinese. He is currently studying while actively engaged in international trade business, often having to visit factories or meet with clients.

Michael is mostly definitely a man of success in my book. Using his foreign language skills and the spare time he has as a college student, he makes cross-border deals by purchasing Chinese-made merchandise at bargain prices and then selling them at a markup through his store on Amazon. Word has it that he is doing tremendously well with his overseas market continuously expanding.

While his peers are focusing on nothing but their studies, Michael has dared to venture into the real world by starting his own business. It is a daunting challenge for anyone. I believe he is the most outstanding classmate I know. Daring, enterprising and outstanding, Michael certainly has a lot to teach me.

我的确知道我们学校有一个成功的创业者,他是一个来自国外的留学生,名字叫 Michael,来自哈萨克 斯坦。我是在我们学院的开学典礼上知道这个人的。那会他代表留学生上台讲话,用流利的中文讲了很 多学习和生活感言。

<mark>我和 Michael 学习同一个专业,因此我们每周都会一起在教室上课。他是个很友善的人,长得也很帅。 在课间我跟他聊过几次。他的中文很好,我们的交流非常顺畅。他告诉我他是随他爸爸过来中国做生意 的,他的中文都是他爸爸教的。</mark>他现在正在边上学边做国际贸易,平时还得去工厂或者见客户。

我认为 Michael 是个成功的人,他虽然只是个学生,但是他利用课余时间和外语优势,在亚马逊上开了 一家自己的网店。他会低价买进一些中国制造的小商品,再加价卖到世界各地去。听说他的店铺经营的 很好,把国内的产品卖到越来越多的国外地区了。

当其他同学都在专注学习时,他就有勇气边学习边创业。要知道创业是一件非常困难的事情。他勇于尝 试和挑战的品质非常难能可贵。在我认识的同学里,他应该是最成功的了。我认为他是一个优秀的人, 值得我学习。

03: 中文很好的外国人(新题)

Describe a person from another culture who speaks Chinese very well. You should say: who he/she is which country does he/she come from how he/she learned your language and explain why you think this person speaks Chinese so well.

I do know of a foreigner from school who speaks Chinese really well, a student from Kazakhstan named Michael.

I first discovered this at our college's opening ceremony, where, as a select member among his peers, Michael shared his wisdom about study and life in general in fluent Chinese. I didn't quite catch a good look at him as I was sitting far away from the podium, and if it hadn't been for the introduction from the dean before his speech, I most probably wouldn't have realized that he was actually not a native Chinese speaker.

Seeing as we major in the same subject, Michael and I go to the same classes every week. He is friendly, goodlooking and a good communicator given his excellent Chinese. And I've been fortunate to have had several pleasant chats with him during the breaks. Michael told me that it was thanks to his father and his father's business that he is here in China and speaks Chinese. From pronunciation to comprehension, Michael started to get the hang of the language bit by bit. Time and practice have combined to make Michael the great Chinese speaker he is today.

How fun it has been to know Michael, it was my first encounter with a person from another land, and what a fascinating experience it has been to talk to him in my native tongue.

我的确知道我们学校有一个中文说得很好的外国人,他是一个来自国外的留学生,名字叫 Michael,来 自哈萨克斯坦。

我是在我们学院的开学典礼上知道这个人的。那会他代表留学生上台讲话,用流利的中文讲了很多学习 和生活感言。那时候我坐的很远,看不清他的样子。如果院长没有提前介绍他的身份,那我可能并不会 觉得他是个外国人!

我和 Michael 学习同一个专业,因此我们每周都会一起在教室上课。他是个很友善的人,长得也很帅。 在课间我跟他聊过几次。他的中文很好,我们的交流非常顺畅。他告诉我他是随他爸爸过来中国做生意 的,他的中文都是他爸爸教的。</mark>一开始他只会模仿中文的发音,后来开始研究每句话的意思。一段时间 之后,他发现自己会说一些简单的中文了。也许正是因为他来中国有很长一段时间了,而且时常要陪爸 爸跟中国的客户谈生意。所以他的中文才说的那么好。

他是我认识的第一个外国人。认识他是一件非常有趣的事情,因为跟一个外国人用中文聊天真的太神奇 了。淘宝:安小雅。

(二) 公园烧烤派对

04-05: 刺激的活动(新题) & 聚会(新题)

Describe a time when you did an exciting activity	Describe a time when you went to a party that you
with other people,	enjoyed.
You should say:	You should say:
what the activity was	when and where the party was held
where you did this activity	what/who the party was for
why you did this activity	what you did at the party
and explain how you felt about it.	and explain why you enjoyed it.

《刺激的活动》&《聚会》

On a sunny weekend not long ago, to celebrate our upcoming graduation, some friends and I organized a special barbecue party. We chose Daifu Mountain Forest Park as the venue. The reason we selected this place was because of its picturesque scenery and its proximity to our school. The park also provided free barbecue areas and equipment for visitors to use. Copyright by Anxiaoya.

We prepared a rich variety of ingredients in advance. Upon arriving at the park, everyone enthusiastically participated, with the guys in charge of igniting the grill while the girls handled the food. After some time, the aroma of grilled meat wafted through the air, making our mouths water. We all worked together to barbecue, shared food, and the entire process filled me with excitement and joy. After dinner, we even played my favorite game, Werewolf. In the game, my friends and I strategized, speculated on identities, and the tense and thrilling atmosphere immersed me completely. Each round was filled with surprises and challenges.

This barbecue party left a lasting impression on me because I hadn't been this happy in a long time. This event not only allowed me to savor delicious food we prepared ourselves but also strengthened the friendships among classmates. Meeting these lovely peers made me feel fortunate. I will forever cherish this wonderful memory.

中文思路:

不久前的一个晴朗的周末,为了庆祝我们即将毕业,我和几个朋友组织了一次特别的烧烤派对。地点选 在了大夫山森林公园。我们之所以选择那里,是因为它风景秀丽,而且离我们学校不远。公园还免费提 供烧烤区域和炉具供游客使用。

我们提前准备了丰富的食材。来到了公园后,大家都积极参与,男生们负责点燃烤炉,女生则负责处理 食材。一段时间过后,烤肉的香气扩散在空气中,令人垂涎欲滴。我们大家一起合作烧烤,分享食物, 整个过程让我感到兴奋和愉快。饭后大家还玩起了我最爱的狼人杀游戏。我和朋友们在游戏中互相出谋 划策、猜测身份。紧张刺激的气氛让我全身心投入到游戏中,每一轮都充满了惊喜和挑战。

<mark>这次的烧烤派对让我印象深刻,因为我很久都没有这么开心过了。</mark>这次活动不仅让我享受到了亲手制作 的美味食物,还加深了同学之间的友情。<mark>能遇见这群可爱的同学让我感到幸运。我会永远珍惜这段美好</mark> <mark>的回忆。</mark>

Describe a time when you enjoyed visiting a park or	Describe a time when you felt tired after doing an
a garden.	activity.
You should say:	You should say:
where it was	what activity you did
when you went there	when and where you did this activity
why you visited there	why you did the activity
what it looked like	and explain why you felt tired after doing this
	activity.

06-07: 逛公园(新题) & 感到累的活动(新题)

《逛公园》

On a sunny weekend not long ago, to celebrate our upcoming graduation, some friends and I organized a special park trip. We chose Daifu Mountain Forest Park as the venue. The reason we selected this place was because of its picturesque scenery and its proximity to our school. The park also provided free barbecue areas and equipment for visitors to use.

Daifu Mountain Park is a renowned forest park in my city. Within the park, there are vast green spaces for people to stroll and relax. There's also a beautiful lake where visitors can go boating or take a leisurely walk along the lakeside. The park's fresh air was invigorating, and my friends and I rode bicycles along the woodland trails, capturing many beautiful photos.

As the sun was about to set, we decided to make our own food at the park's barbecue area. everyone enthusiastically participated, with the guys in charge of igniting the grill while the girls handled the food. After some time, the aroma of grilled meat wafted through the air, making our mouths water. We all worked together to barbecue, shared food, and the entire process filled me with excitement and joy.

This experience left a lasting impression on me because I hadn't been this happy in a long time. Meeting these lovely peers made me feel fortunate. I will forever cherish this wonderful memory.

中文思路:

<mark>不久前的一个晴朗的周末,为了庆祝我们即将毕业,我和几个朋友组织了一次特别的</mark>公园之旅<mark>。地点选</mark> 在了大夫山森林公园。我们之所以选择那里,是因为它风景秀丽,而且离我们学校不远。公园还免费提 供烧烤区域和炉具供游客使用。

大夫山公园是我所在城市非常出名的森林公园。公园内不仅有大片的绿地供人们散步和休息。还有一个 美丽的湖泊,游客可以在湖上划船或者沿着湖边散步。公园里清新的空气让人心旷神怡,我和朋友们一 起在公园里绕着林间小道骑单车,还拍了很多好看的照片。

在太阳快要下山时,我们决定在公园的烧烤区自己制作食物。<mark>大家都积极参与,男生们负责点燃烤炉,</mark> 女生则负责处理食材。一段时间过后,烤肉的香气扩散在空气中,令人垂涎欲滴。我们大家一起合作烧 烤,分享食物,整个过程让我感到兴奋和愉快。

这次的<mark>经历</mark>让我印象深刻,因为我很久都没有这么开心过了。能遇见这群可爱的同学让我感到幸运。我 会永远珍惜这段美好的回忆。

《感到累的活动》

On a sunny weekend not long ago, to celebrate our upcoming graduation, some friends and I organized a special barbecue party. We chose Daifu Mountain Forest Park as the venue. The reason we selected this place was because of its picturesque scenery and its proximity to our school. The park also provided free barbecue areas and equipment for visitors to use.

We prepared a rich variety of ingredients in advance. Upon arriving at the park, everyone enthusiastically participated, with the guys in charge of igniting the grill while the girls handled the food. After some time, the aroma of grilled meat wafted through the air, making our mouths water. We all worked together to barbecue, shared food, and the entire process filled me with excitement and joy. After dinner, we even played my favorite game, Werewolf. In the game, my friends and I strategized, speculated on identities, and the tense and thrilling atmosphere immersed me completely. Each round was filled with surprises and challenges.

We played late into the night, and by the time we returned to the dormitory, it was already the wee hours. Although I thoroughly enjoyed this activity, after a whole day of barbecuing, gaming, and deep thinking, my body began to feel tired. I didn't even have the energy to take a shower and fell into a deep sleep shortly after returning. Undoubtedly, this exhaustion was a satisfying one. Meeting these lovely peers made me feel fortunate. I will forever cherish this wonderful memory.

中文思路:

不久前的一个晴朗的周末,为了庆祝我们即将毕业,我和几个朋友组织了一次特别的烧烤派对。地点选 在了大夫山森林公园。我们之所以选择那里,是因为它风景秀丽,而且离我们学校不远。公园还免费提 供烧烤区域和炉具供游客使用。

我们提前准备了丰富的食材。来到了公园后,大家都积极参与,男生们负责点燃烤炉,女生则负责处理 食材。一段时间过后,烤肉的香气扩散在空气中,令人垂涎欲滴。我们大家一起合作烧烤,分享食物, 整个过程让我感到兴奋和愉快。饭后大家还玩起了我最爱的狼人杀游戏。我和朋友们在游戏中互相出谋 划策、猜测身份。紧张刺激的气氛让我全身心投入到游戏中,每一轮都充满了惊喜和挑战。

那天我们玩的非常晚,回到宿舍已经是深夜了。尽管我非常享受这个活动,但在一整天的烧烤、游戏和 思考之后,我的身体开始感到疲惫。我甚至没有精力去洗澡,回去不久就开始倒头大睡。当然这种疲惫 是一种愉快的疲惫。<mark>能遇见这群可爱的同学让我感到幸运。我会永远珍惜这段美好的回忆。</mark>

(三) 奖学金

08-09: 改变人生的时期(新题) & 困难任务(新题)

Describe a time when something happened that	Describe something difficult you did and be proud of
changed your life in a good way.	it in your work or studies.
You should say:	You should say:
what happened	what you had done
when and where it happened	why you did this
how you felt about it	how difficult it was
and explain how this changed your life in a good way.	and explain why you felt so proud of yourself for
	doing it.

Speaking of the challenges I've faced in my studies, I'd like to discuss something that has made me proud for quite some time now - my achievement in securing a scholarship. Last year, I set out to obtain a top-tier scholarship at our school. This particular scholarship is awarded based on the academic performance of each semester, with an amount of 5,000 RMB granted to students who maintain an average ranking within the top 5 of the entire grade. Now, it's worth mentioning that our grade consists of over 400 students, so you can imagine this was definitely no easy feat.

My motivation to strive for this first-class scholarship was significant. For a student, it represents a substantial sum of money! If I were successful, I could use the scholarship to travel to other cities during winter break and savor delicious meals. Beyond the financial aspect, the first-class scholarship is also a symbol of honor.

I dedicated a considerable amount of effort and time to prepare for this opportunity. This included both my final exams and my active involvement in various extracurricular activities throughout the year. It was only recently that I found my name listed as a recipient of the scholarship, and I couldn't contain my excitement; I was literally dancing for joy in my dorm.

This scholarship has brought me immense joy and a sense of fulfillment. Not only does it provide the means to purchase things I enjoy, but it also serves as recognition for the hard work I've put in throughout the year. Overcome with excitement, I enthusiastically shared this amazing news with my family and friends. My friends couldn't help but envy my achievement, and my parents expressed their pride in my accomplishment. The admiration and praise from both friends and family have reinforced the belief that my efforts were truly worthwhile.

谈到学习中遇到的困难(让生活变得更好的事 a positive change in my life),我想谈谈我获得奖学金的 事,这足以让我自豪了好久。去年,我试图获得我们学校的一等奖学金。一等奖学金以每学期的学习成 绩为基础,平均在年级前5的学生可获得5000元的奖学金。要知道我们年级有400多名学生,这无疑 是一件非常困难的事。

我想争取一等奖学金,因为这对一个学生来说是一大笔钱!!如果我能获得奖学金,我可以在寒假去其 他城市旅游,吃美味的食物。除此之外,一等奖学金也是一种荣誉的象征。

<mark>我为此努力准备了很久,包括期末考试和平时的社团活动,我都拼尽了全力。</mark>直到最近我发现奖学金的 名单上有我,我兴奋的在宿舍手舞足蹈起来。

这份奖学金让我感到非常兴奋和满足(让我的生活变得更好, change my life in a good way),不仅因为

这笔钱可以买很多我喜欢的东西,还是对我这一年努力的肯定。兴奋之余,我把这个好消息分享给了我 的家人和朋友,朋友知道了都非常羡慕我,爸爸妈妈也说以我为骄傲,朋友和亲人的赞美都让我觉得我 的努力没有白费。我想今年我会继续努力的,我很喜欢得奖的感觉。

10: 等待美好事情(新题)

Describe a time when you had to wait a long time for something nice to happen.

You should say: what you were waiting for how long you waited why you had to wait and explain how you felt when the nice thing finally happened.

I vividly recall the previous semester when, after the scholarship selection process concluded, I waited for nearly a month before our college finally announced the results. Fortunately, I eventually received the scholarship.

At our school, the first-tier scholarship is awarded based on a combination of academic performance for the semester and an assessment of the applicants' involvement in extracurricular activities. Students ranked in the top 5 of their year are eligible for a 5000 RMB scholarship. This process involves a complex scoring system and reviews by teachers, which is why it takes nearly a month to finalize the results.

I aimed to secure the first-tier scholarship because it represents a substantial sum for a student! If I were to receive the scholarship, I could use it to travel to other cities during winter break and savor delicious cuisine. Additionally, the first-tier scholarship is a symbol of honor. To achieve it, I dedicated extensive effort and preparation. I gave my all in both final exams and my participation in extracurricular activities.

After submitting my application materials, each day of waiting was agonizing. I continuously checked my email and application status, hoping to receive good news as soon as possible. When I finally received the scholarship notification, my heart was filled with joy and satisfaction. I felt that my hard work and patience had paid off.

中文思路:

我现在依然清楚的记得上学期,在奖学金评选结束后,我等了快一个月才等到我们学院公布获奖结果。 幸运的是,我最终获得了该奖学金。

我们学校的一等奖学金是以每学期的学习成绩为基础,同时参考申请者的社团活动经历,综合排名在年级前 5 的学生可获得 5000 元的奖学金。这个过程需要经过复杂的评分和老师的审查,所以需要接近一个月的时间才能得出结果。

我想争取一等奖学金,因为这对一个学生来说是一大笔钱!!如果我能获得奖学金,我可以在寒假去其他城市旅游,吃美味的食物。除此之外,一等奖学金也是一种荣誉的象征。为了获得该奖学金,我努力准备了很久。在期末考试和平时的社团活动中,我都拼尽了全力。

在递交了申请材料后,每一天的等待都让我感到煎熬,我不断检查我的电子邮件和申请状态,希望能够 早日收到好消息。当我收到获奖通知的那一刻,我的内心充满了喜悦和满足。我感到自己的努力和等待 是值得的。

(四) 备考搭子

11-12: 没见过的有趣陌生人(新题) & 想法有趣的人(新题)

Describe an interesting person who you have never	Describe a person who always has interesting ideas
met, but would like to know more about.	and opinions.
You should say:	You should say:
who this person is	who this person is
how you heard about this person	how you knew this person
what interesting things he/she has done	what kind of ideas he/she has
and explain why you'd like to know more about this	and explain why you think this person's ideas and
person.	opinions are interesting.

《没见过的有趣陌生人》

Not long ago, I had the pleasure of getting to know an intriguing person named Arya. We crossed paths in an IELTS study group, where we engaged in frequent WeChat conversations and shared our learning experiences.

A: Though I've never met her in person, I'm genuinely eager to learn more about her.

B: Also, it didn't take me long to find her a creative and smart person.

Arya is an exceptionally active member within the study group, frequently offering valuable insights into test preparation and exchanging thoughts with others. I found myself drawn to her enthusiasm, prompting me to initiate online conversations with her. She possesses a wealth of fascinating experiences and ideas. For instance, she once engaged in a short-term exchange program abroad and shared captivating stories of her life and learning experiences in diverse cultural settings. These narratives always left me intrigued and excited. Additionally, Arya's perspectives are remarkably diverse. She not only focuses on her studies but also engages in discussions about current societal issues, offering her unique and thought-provoking insights. Her viewpoints often stand out, sparking profound discussions and contemplation. Her distinctive thought process and open-minded approach make our interactions inspirational and have taught me the importance of embracing different viewpoints.

A: In conclusion, although I've never met Arya in person, her personality, experiences, and ideas make me yearn to learn more about her.

B: I find Arya's views intriguing because she always brings me new perspectives to solve problems.

She is a captivating individual, and our exchanges never fail to pique my curiosity, driving me to continually seek new knowledge and perspectives.

中文思路:

不久前我认识了一个有趣的人,她叫 Arya。我们是在一个雅思学习群里认识的,我们经常微信聊天和互相分享学习经验。

A:《没见过的有趣陌生人》 尽管我从未真正见过她,但我非常希望能更多地了解她。

B:《想法有趣的人》 没过多久,我开始逐渐发现她是一个充满创造力和智慧的人。

Arya 在学习群里非常活跃,经常跟其他人分享备考经验和交流心得。我被她的热情所吸引,于是开始主动与她进行在线交流。她有很多有趣的经历和想法。比如她曾经在国外短期交流,她分享了自己在不同文化背景下的生活和学习经历,这些故事总是令人感到有趣和兴奋。另外,Arya 的想法非常多样化,她不仅专注于学习,还经常会和大家讨论当下的热点社会问题并发表自己的有趣见解。她的观点往往不同寻常,能够引发深入的讨论和思考。她的独特思维方式和开放的态度使得我们的交流充满启发,同时也让我认识到了不同观点的重要性。

A:《没见过的有趣陌生人》 总之,尽管我从未真正见过 Arya,但她的个性、经历和想法让我渴望能够更多地了解她。

B:《想法有趣的人》我之所以觉得 Arya 的观点很有趣,是因为她总是能够给我带来新的思考角度。她是一个令人着迷的人,与她的交流总能激发我的好奇心,使我不断追求新的知识和见解。



(五) 家庭旅行照片

13-14: 喜欢的照片(新题) & 一幅画(新题)

Describe a photo you have kept that makes you feel	Describe a painting or drawing you enjoy looking at.
happy.	You should say:
You should say:	when and where you first saw it
what it shows	what it was about
when and where the photo was taken	what you know about the person who create it
how often you look at it	And explain why you enjoy looking at it.
and explain why this photo makes you feel happy.	

《喜欢的照片》

In my room, there sits a photograph on my desk, and in it, I look incredibly happy. Every time I gaze upon it, it brings me joy. It's a snapshot from a family trip I took last year. Back then, my family and I ventured to the countryside for a tranquil weekend. Copy right by An xiao ya.

In the photograph, we are standing by the side of a lake. The background is adorned with lush trees, and the lake water is crystal clear, like a mirror reflecting the trees and blue sky by its shore. Under the gentle caress of sunlight, the lake water refracts a spectrum of colors. The entire photograph is rich in hues, perfectly encapsulating the beauty of nature. Each of us, my family and I, wears a smile on our faces. Beautiful landscapes have a way of bringing about a sense of contentment, and it's evident that each one of us was delighted.

Whenever I step into my room, this photograph greets me. To me, photography is a form of preservation. It captures the little moments of life through the lens, allowing us to hold onto these precious instances, all the while serving as a way of commemoration. Perhaps my photography equipment isn't professional, and my skills aren't extraordinary, but this photograph still fills me with delights. It's because there are so many moments in life that deserve to be recorded, to be shared with those who matter. This photograph always evokes memories of that family trip. It was a time filled with laughter and warmth, a precious period I shared with my family.

中文思路:

我房间里有一张放在书桌上的照片,照片中的我非常好看。<mark>每次看到它都会让我感到快乐。</mark>它是我在去 年的一次家庭旅行中拍摄的。<mark>当时,我和家人一起前往乡村度过一个宁静的周末。</mark>

照片中我和家人站在一个湖边。<mark>背景的树木郁郁葱葱,湖水非常清澈,就像一面镜子倒映着湖边的树木</mark> <mark>和蓝天。在阳光的照射下湖水折射出不同的颜色。整张照片色彩非常丰富,充分展现了大自然的美丽。</mark> 我和家人都面带微笑,美丽的风光总能带给人愉悦的心情,很显然我们每个人都很高兴。

只要我走进我的房间,就会看到这张照片。在我看来,拍照是一种记录。把点点滴滴的生活记录到自己 的镜头里,这样就可以留住这些美好的瞬间,同时它也是一种纪念。或许我的拍照设备不专业,或许我 的拍照技术不高超,但是这张照片依然令我感到快乐,只因人生中有太多时刻值得被记录,值得与重要 的人分享。这张照片总能让我怀念起那次家庭旅行。那个充满了欢笑和温馨的时刻,那是我和家人共度 的宝贵时光。

《一幅画》

In my room, there hangs a framed landscape oil painting on the wall. Every time I gaze upon it, it brings me joy. I purchased this artwork several years ago during a family trip. Back then, my family and I ventured to the countryside for a tranquil weekend.

This painting was crafted by a local artist, capturing a moment of sheer beauty and immortalizing it on canvas. The creator of this artwork is a local artist, and while I don't possess much information about him, I can sense his profound love for nature and his exceptional talent in depicting scenic landscapes.

This oil painting depicts a tranquil lake and the surrounding scenery. The background is adorned with lush trees, and the lake water is crystal clear, like a mirror reflecting the trees and blue sky by its shore. Under the gentle caress of sunlight, the lake water refracts a spectrum of colors. The entire painting is rich in hues, perfectly encapsulating the beauty of nature.

I really like this oil painting. To me, painting is like taking a photo. It is a form of preservation. It captures the little moments of life through the lens, allowing us to hold onto these precious instances, all the while serving as a way of commemoration. This painting always evokes memories of that family trip. It was a time filled with laughter and warmth, a precious period I shared with my family.

中文思路:

我房间里有一幅裱起来挂在墙上的风景油画,每次看到它都会让我感到快乐。这幅画是我在几年前的一 次家庭旅行中购买的。<mark>当时,我和家人一起前往乡村度过一个宁静的周末。</mark>

这幅画是当地一位艺术家创作的,他捕捉到了这个美丽的瞬间,将其永远留在了画布上。画作的作者是 当地的一位艺术家,虽然我没有太多关于他的信息,但我可以感受到他对大自然的深厚热爱和对景色的 精湛描绘能力。

这幅油画描绘了一座宁静的湖泊和周围的风景。背景的树木郁郁葱葱,湖水非常清澈,就像一面镜子倒 映着湖边的树木和蓝天。在阳光的照射下湖水折射出不同的颜色。整张油画色彩非常丰富,充分展现了 大自然的美丽。

我很喜欢这幅油画。在我看来,画画就像拍照一样,是一种记录。<mark>把点点滴滴的美景记录到自己的画作</mark> <mark>里,这样就可以留住这些美好的瞬间。同时它也是一种纪念。这张油画总能让我怀念起那次家庭旅行。</mark> 那个充满了欢笑和温馨的时刻,那是我和家人共度的宝贵时光。

(六)宿舍规定

15-16: 有益的广告(新题) & 重要规定(新题)

Describe an advertisement you have seen that you	Describe a rule at work or school that you think is
think is good.	important.
You should say:	You should say:
what it is for	what it is
what it shows	how you knew this rule
when and where you saw it	what happens if people break it
and explain why you think it is a piece of good	and explain why you think this rule at work/school is
advertisement.	important.

《有益的广告》

I've come across a really effective ad recently. It was posted in the hallways of our dorm and at the entrance. This ad is all about reminding us to be mindful of electrical safety, with the main message being that high-powered electrical devices are a no-go in student dorms to prevent the risk of fires.

Copyright by Anxiaoya. The ad's content is pretty straightforward. There's an image showing a student using an electric kettle, but it's covered by a big red "NO" symbol, meaning it's off-limits. There's also some brief text explaining why these high-power appliances are banned and what the consequences are for breaking the rules.

I first saw this ad when I first started school. The dorm supervisor handed out pamphlets with this information. Plus, they posted it on the bulletin board in the dorm building so that every student would see it.

What I really appreciate about this ad is its simplicity. It gets the message across with just one image and a few words. I think this kind of awareness is crucial because dorms can get crowded, and the hallways and stairwells are usually pretty tight. In case of a fire, quick evacuation can be challenging. Using these high-powered appliances improperly can put other people's lives and property at serious risk. So, in my opinion, it's a fantastic ad that serves as a clear warning while keeping things simple and easy to understand.

中文思路:

我见过一条很好的广告。那是在我们宿舍楼道和大门口贴的告示。这条广告是为了提醒我们注意用电安全,以大致内容是学生宿舍禁止使用大功率电器,否则可能会引起火灾。

广告的内容非常简洁明了。图片显示了一名学生正在使用电热水壶,但旁边有一个巨大的红色禁止符号 覆盖在电热水壶上,表示禁止使用的意思。旁边还有文字简要说明了禁止使用大功率电器的原因和违反 规定会受到的处罚。

我第一次看到这则广告是在刚入学的时候,宿管阿姨给我发了一份广告宣传页。此外,它还在宿舍楼的 公告板上张贴,以确保每位学生都能看到。

这条广告没有复杂的语言,仅仅通过一张图片和少量文字传达了明确的信息。我认为这样的宣传非常有 意义。因为宿舍是一个学生密集居住的地方,走廊和楼梯都比较窄。一旦出现火灾,学生们将很难在短 时间内疏散。违规使用电器会对其他人的生命和财产造成严重威胁。我认为这是一则出色的广告,它有 很好的警示作用,同时保持了简单和易懂的特点。

《重要规定》

The rule about not using high-powered electrical appliances in our school dorms is something I really see as crucial. It's all about keeping our dorm life safe. I first heard about it from the dorm supervisor when I moved in, and there are reminders posted on the dorm bulletin board so that everyone knows the deal.

Basically, this rule means we can't use stuff like electric kettles, induction cookers, or electric heaters in our dorm rooms. It's there to prevent the risk of overloading circuits and fires. If someone breaks this rule, the school takes action. They might start with a written warning, telling you to stop using those high-powered appliances. If you keep breaking the rule, things can get more serious, like getting a disciplinary mark or a serious scolding.

I can't stress enough how crucial I think this rule is. Campus fires happen more often than you'd think, and a lot of them come from students using stuff they're not supposed to in their dorms. Dorms can get crowded, and the hallways and stairwells are usually pretty tight. In case of a fire, quick evacuation can be challenging. Using these high-powered appliances improperly can put other people's lives and property at serious risk. So, the ban on high-powered electrical appliances in the dorms is really all about creating a safe and peaceful dorm environment.

中文思路:

学校宿舍禁止使用大功率电器是一项我认为非常重要的规定,这一规则旨在确保宿舍生活的安全。我是 在刚搬入宿舍时,宿管阿姨告诉我的。同时,这个规定还在宿舍楼的公告板上张贴,以确保每位学生都 能看到。

根据这个规定,学校宿舍内不允许使用大功率电器,例如电热水壶、电磁炉和电暖气等等。这是为了防 止电路过载和火灾的风险。

如果有人违反了这一规定,学校会采取一系列措施。违规者可能会先收到一份书面警告,要求停止使用 大功率电器。如果他们继续违规,学校可以采取更严厉的措施,如记过处分或全校批评。

我认为这项规定非常重要。校园火灾事故高发,绝大多数是因为学生在宿舍内使用违规电器引起的。<mark>宿</mark> 舍是一个学生密集居住的地方,走廊和楼梯都比较窄。一旦出现火灾,学生们将很难在短时间内疏散。 违规使用电器会对其他人的生命和财产造成严重威胁。因此,学校宿舍禁止使用大功率电器是一项至关 重要的规定,它有助于创造一个安全和谐的宿舍环境。

17: 给他人建议(新题)

Describe a time when you gave a piece of advice to someone. You should say: who you gave advice to what it was how this person reacted to the advice and explain whether you feel you gave this person the right advice.

Just a short time ago, I had a chat with my roommate Arya, and I offered her some advice. It was a friendly reminder not to use an induction cooker in our dorm. It was at the start of the school year, and she brought an induction cooker from home, thinking we could all have a hot pot party in the dorm.

But I knew that our school has a rule that we can't use stuff like electric kettles, induction cookers, or electric heaters in our dorm rooms. I first discovered it when I first started school. The dorm supervisor handed out pamphlets with this information. Plus, they posted it on the bulletin board in the dorm building so that every student would see it.

I suggested to Arya that we skip using the cooker in our room and instead go out to a hot pot restaurant to celebrate the beginning of the school year. At first, Arya didn't think it was a big deal and kind of brushed it off. I strongly informed her that dorms can get crowded, and the hallways and stairwells are usually pretty tight. In case of a fire, quick evacuation can be challenging. Moreover, students who broke the rule would be warned or get a disciplinary mark or a campus-wide scolding. But eventually, she agreed with me, and we had a good time celebrating outside.

I believe I gave Arya the right advice. True friends should always look out for each other and give a heads-up when they see a potential risk. It's all about avoiding any bad consequences down the road.

中文思路:

不久前我给了我舍友 Arya 一个建议,也是一个善意的提醒,那就是不要在宿舍使用电磁炉。那时候刚 开学,她从家里带了一个电磁炉来宿舍想跟大家一起吃火锅。

<mark>但是我知道我们学校有规定,宿舍内不允许使用大功率电器,例如电热水壶、电磁炉和电暖气等等。这</mark> 是在刚搬入宿舍时,宿管阿姨告诉我的。同时,楼道和宿舍大门上都有贴着相关的说明。

于是我建议 Arya 不要在宿舍用电磁炉,我们可以一起去火锅店庆祝开学。一开始 Arya 不以为然,觉得 这不是什么大事。但我告诉她,大功率电器可能引发火灾或电器故障。宿舍是一个学生密集居住的地方, 走廊和楼梯都比较窄。一旦出现火灾,学生们将很难在短时间内疏散。而且如果违反了规定的话,我们 会被警告,甚至会被记过和处分。后来 Arya 被我说服了,她愉快的接受了我的建议。

我认为我给了 Arya 正确的建议。好朋友就是应该在发现风险的时候及时提醒对方,不要贪图一时的方便而做出危险的举动。这样才能避免不良后果的发生。

(七) 拉萨

18-19: 感兴趣的地方 (新题) & 美丽的城市 (新题)

Describe the part of your country that you find most	Describe a city which you think is beautiful.
interesting.	You should say:
You should say:	where the city is
where it is	how you know it
how you know about it	what it is famous for
what people can see and do there	and explain why you think this city is beautiful.
and explain why you find it most interesting.	

A place of great fun, Lhasa is on the bucket list of many would-be Chinese tourists. Perched upon the majestic Tibetan Plateau, Lhasa claims its place among the loftiest cities on Earth. Eminent for its iconic Potala Palace, this hallowed city serves as a spiritual haven for devout followers of Buddhism.

Everything I know about the City of Sunlight comes from social media since it is recommended to their fans by virtually all the travel bloggers I follow as an attraction that boasts distinctive scenery and culture.

A: Since many scenic attractions in Lhasa require transportation by car, the first thing most people do when they come for a visit is rent a car. That way, they can go anywhere as they please.

B: Renowned around the world for its high altitude and the Tibetan way of life, the sacred land captivates travelers with beauty unseen anywhere else forged by its unique geography and climate.

Should fortune favor us, I fervently aspire to visit Namtso—a veritable jewel among the three sacred lakes adorning Tibet's landscape. Beyond its crystalline waters, visitors are blessed with a majestic panorama of snow-capped mountains stretching across the horizon. A visit to the venerable Potala Palace, an iconic emblem of Lhasa, also occupies a prominent place on my itinerary.

Lhasa emanates a magical and intriguing aura, where the thin air coexists with the unwavering faith of its people. I was deeply moved by a video I once saw on social media, depicting Tibetan individuals dressed in humble attire, braving the elements as they set forth from their homes. At regular intervals, they would humbly kneel down, bowing their heads in profound reverence. Their destination? The revered Jokhang Temple. Witnessing their resolute devotion kindled within me an irresistible desire to personally experience the mystique of Lhasa.

拉萨是一个有趣(美丽)的地方,更是很多中国人心中此生必去的旅游目的地之一。拉萨位于青藏高原, 是世界上海拔最高的城市之一。这里不仅有全世界闻名的布达拉宫,更是许多佛教信徒心中的圣地。

我是在社交媒体上了解到拉萨这座城市的,我所关注的旅行博主几乎都会向自己的粉丝推荐拉萨作为旅行的目的地。因为这里不论是风景还是人文都有非常显著的地域特色。

A《感兴趣的地方》: 拉萨的大多数景点都需要自驾才能到达,因此,大部分的游客来到这里的第一件事就是租一辆汽车,这样他们就可以随心所欲的去任何自己想去的地方。

B《美丽的城市》: 拉萨以高海拔和藏族文化闻名全世界, 独特的地理条件造就了拉萨与众不同的气候, 在这里游客可以看到独一无二的高原风光。

<mark>如果我去拉萨旅游,那我一定不会错过纳木错。这里是西藏的三大圣湖之一。除了清澈的湖水,远处还</mark> 可以看到雪山。我想去著名的布达拉宫,这是拉萨标志性的建筑。 拉萨是一个神奇又有趣(美丽)的城市,这里的空气稀薄,但是这里的人却充满了信仰。我曾经在社交 网站看过一个视频。一些衣着补素的藏民不惧风雨,不怕路途遥远,从自己的家出发,每走几步就会跪 下磕头,直到到达他们心中的圣地大昭寺。那种虔诚的信仰之力让我的心灵受到巨大的震撼。因此我非 常想去拉萨看看。

20: 想去的遥远之地

Describe a place which is far away that you would like to visit in the future. Where it is How you would travel there What you would do there And explain why you would really like to visit this place.

Lhasa stands as a highly esteemed city, one that has perpetually beckoned me to embark on a brief sojourn. Perched upon the majestic Tibetan Plateau, Lhasa claims its place among the loftiest cities on Earth. Eminent for its iconic Potala Palace, this hallowed city serves as a spiritual haven for devout followers of Buddhism.

Undoubtedly, traversing the Tibetan landscape by train stands as the favored mode of transport. Not only does it offer an economically viable option, but it also affords travelers the opportunity to feast their eyes upon breathtaking vistas along the way. However, acquiring train tickets can prove to be an arduous task, given the overwhelming popularity of this particular passage.

My heartfelt desire is to accompany my family on this journey to Lhasa. Since many scenic attractions in Lhasa require transportation by car, my father, an accomplished driver, assumes the role of an ideal driver. Should fortune favor us, I fervently aspire to visit Namtso—a veritable jewel among the three sacred lakes adorning Tibet's landscape. Beyond its crystalline waters, visitors are blessed with a majestic panorama of snow-capped mountains stretching across the horizon. A visit to the venerable Potala Palace, an iconic emblem of Lhasa, also occupies a prominent place on my itinerary.

Lhasa emanates a magical and intriguing aura, where the thin air coexists with the unwavering faith of its people. I was deeply moved by a video I once saw on social media, depicting Tibetan individuals dressed in humble attire, braving the elements as they set forth from their homes. At regular intervals, they would humbly kneel down, bowing their heads in profound reverence. Their destination? The revered Jokhang Temple. Witnessing their resolute devotion kindled within me an irresistible desire to personally experience the mystique of Lhasa.

拉萨是一座非常著名的城市,更是很多中国人心中此生必去的旅游目的地之一。我一直想去拉萨进行一 场短途旅行。拉萨位于青藏高原,是世界上海拔最高的城市之一。这里不仅有全世界闻名的布达拉宫, 更是许多佛教信徒心中的圣地。

最受欢迎的进藏方式毫无疑问是乘坐火车,火车不仅价格便宜,还可以欣赏沿途美丽的风景。只是我不 确定是否能买到车票,因为这条线路实在是太受欢迎了。我希望和我的家人一起去拉萨。拉萨的大多数 景点都需要自驾才能到达,而我的爸爸是一名有经验的司机。

如果我去拉萨旅游,那我一定不会错过纳木错。这里是西藏的三大圣湖之一。除了清澈的湖水,远处还 可以看到雪山。我想去著名的布达拉宫,这是拉萨标志性的建筑。拉萨是一个神奇又有趣的城市,这里 的空气稀薄,但是这里的人却充满了信仰。我曾经在社交网站看过一个视频。一些衣着补素的藏民不惧 风雨,不怕路途遥远,从自己的家出发,每走几步就会跪下磕头,直到到达他们心中的圣地大昭寺。那 种虔诚的信仰之力让我的心灵受到巨大的震撼。因此我非常想去拉萨看看。

(八) AI

21-22: 感兴趣的科学领域(新题) & 感兴趣的工作

Describe an area of science that you are interested in	Describe a job you think would be interesting to do.
You should say:	You should say:
what it is	What it is
when and where you first heard about it	What skills are necessary to do the job
how you get more information about it now	When you first knew this job
and explain why you are interested in this area of	And explain why you think this job would be
science.	interesting to do.

《感兴趣的科学领域》

As for my interest in AI and robots, I've been intrigued by them since I was a kid, having watched many movies that explore the idea of rapidly advancing AI developing its own thoughts and potentially disrupting human society. However, I always felt those movies were somewhat exaggerated.

It was around last year that I discovered on social media how rapidly AI technology is evolving. For instance, software like ChatGPT can engage in conversations based on users' needs. It helps users to plan trips, write papers, and even edit computer code. In the real world, AI applications are diverse, ranging from self-driving cars to AI-generated art and smart home devices.

Now, I often follow news related to AI and tech products. AI is increasingly being applied to daily life, and I'm more than willing to invest in smart home appliances that make my life more convenient.

I believe that in the near future, AI technology will find applications in numerous aspects of our lives and work. Of course, the rapid development of artificial intelligence has also raised some concerns for me. With more and more jobs being replaced by AI, I need to gain a deeper understanding of it and seek a career that won't be easily replaced by AI to ensure my continued relevance.

中文思路:

从小到大,我都对机器人和人工智能非常感兴趣。其实早在我小时候,我就看过很多关于智能机器人的 电影。这些电影都宣传了一个理念,那就是发展迅速的 AI 将会产生自己的思想,从而严重破坏人类社 会的秩序。但这毕竟是电影,我总觉得它们有点夸张了。淘宝:安小雅。

大概是去年,在社交媒体上了解到 AI 这项技术正在飞速发展。例如 ChatGPT 这款软件就可以根据用户 的需求来进行对话,它可以帮助用户制定旅行攻略,写论文,甚至还可以编辑计算机代码。而在现实中 AI 的应用也非常广泛,例如自动驾驶,AI 画画,智能家居设备等等都是 AI 技术的应用。

现在,我经常会关注人工智能相关的新闻,或者是科技产品。人工智能越来越多的被应用在生活中,我 非常乐意购买一些智能的家居电器。它们让我的生活变得非常便捷。

我相信在不久的将来,AI技术将会应用于我们生活和工作的各个方面。当然,人工智能的飞速发展也让 我产生了一些担忧因为越来越多的工作能被 AI 所替代,我必须更加深入的了解它,找到和从事不会被 AI 替代的工作,这样才能保证自己存在的价值。

《感兴趣的工作》

I have a strong interest in AI-related work and hope to pursue a career in this field, possibly in roles involving the design and development of AI products.

It was around last year that I discovered on social media how rapidly AI technology is evolving. For instance, software like ChatGPT can engage in conversations based on users' needs. It helps users to plan trips, write papers, and even edit computer code. In the real world, AI applications are diverse, ranging from self-driving cars to AI-generated art and smart home devices.

To work in this field, I'll need to acquire a solid foundation in computer skills. Since I didn't major in computer science, I'll need to self-study to gain relevant knowledge. Additionally, I'll need to enhance my creative thinking skills so that I can effectively bridge everyday life with AI and design more AI products that contribute to societal development and enhance people's lives.

I believe that in the near future, AI technology will find applications in numerous aspects of our lives and work. Figuring out how to integrate AI into various industries is both a challenging and exciting endeavor. If I can become an AI designer, I'll have the opportunity to participate in the process of advancing technology and driving societal development, which would provide an unparalleled sense of involvement and achievement.

中文思路:

我对 AI 相关的工作非常感兴趣,想日后从事这方面的工作,例如设计和开发 AI 产品的职位。

大概是去年,在社交媒体上了解到 AI 这项技术正在飞速发展。例如 ChatGPT 这款软件就可以根据用户 的需求来进行对话,它可以帮助用户制定旅行攻略,写论文,甚至还可以编辑计算机代码。而在现实中 AI 的应用也非常广泛,例如自动驾驶,AI 画画,智能家居设备等等都是 AI 技术的应用。

要想从事这方面的工作,首先我需要学习一定的计算机技能。因为我不是学习计算机专业的,所以我需要自学相关的知识。其次,我需要提高我的创新思维能力,这样我才能更好地将生活和 AI 联系起来,设计更多帮助社会发展和便捷人们生活的 AI 产品。

我相信在不久的将来,AI技术将会应用于我们生活和工作的各个方面。而如何将 AI 应用到各行各业是 一件非常有挑战性也非常有趣的事情。如果我能成为一名 AI 设计师,那么我可以参与到推动技术进步 和社会发展的过程中,这种参与感和成就感是无与伦比的。

23: 有用的发明

Describe an invention which is very useful in your daily life. You should say: What it is What you use it for Is it easy to use And explain why it is very useful in your daily life.

In recent years, we have witnessed a remarkable surge in AI technology, and AI is becoming increasingly embedded in our everyday lives. One particularly advantageous innovation I encountered during my college experience is facial recognition access control.

This semester, our university has installed a brand-new access control system in all the dormitories. This system uses facial recognition to confirm a person's identity, similar to Apple's Face ID. It's incredibly user-friendly; all I had to do was go to the service center to register my facial data, and then I gained access to enter and exit the dormitory. Upon entering, I simply stand in front of the smart device, and its camera automatically recognizes my facial features. Once there's a successful match, the access control opens up.

This new access control system has had a significant impact on my life. On one hand, it prevents unauthorized individuals from entering our campus, which enhances our overall security. In the past, there were sporadic thefts in our dorms, but since the implementation of this system, those occurrences have drastically diminished. Furthermore, it's incredibly convenient; we no longer need to carry extra access cards to enter the dorms. The smart camera takes only 1-2 seconds to complete the identity verification. All in all, it's a highly valuable invention that improves both dormitory security and student convenience.

中文思路:

最近几年,AI技术正在飞速发展,人工智能越来越多的被应用在生活中。人脸识别门禁是我校园生活中 遇到的一个非常有用的发明。

这个学期,我们学校所有的宿舍楼安装了全新的门禁系统。这个系统可以通过识别人的面部特征来验证 一个人的身份,这类似于苹果的 face id。它使用起来非常容易。我只要去服务中心录入自己的人脸信息, 就可以获取进入和离开宿舍的权限。当我想要进入宿舍楼时,我只需站到智能设备前,它的摄像头就会 自动识别我的面部特征。匹配成功后门禁就会自动打开。

这个新的门禁系统在我生活中发挥了不少的作用。一方面,它能防止校外的陌生人进入,提高了我们居住的安全性。以往我们宿舍楼偶尔会发生盗窃事件,但在安装了这套系统后,盗窃事件的发生次数大大减少。其次,它非常易于使用,我们不再需要携带额外的门禁卡即可进入宿舍。智能摄像头只需 1-2 秒钟就可以完成身份识别。总的来说这是一个非常有用的发明,它同时提高了宿舍的安全性和学生生活的便利性。

(九)明朝那些事儿

24-25: 感兴趣的历史时期(新题) & 多次阅读的书籍

Describe a period in history which you are interested	Describe a book you have read more than once.
in.	You should say:
You should say:	Why you read this book
when it was	What this book was about
what happened	Whether you learnt anything from it
how you first heard about it	And explain why you have read this book more than
and explain why you are interested in this period of	once.
history.	

《感兴趣的历史时期》

The Ming Dynasty, dating back hundreds of years, is a fascinating chapter in history. Ming, one of the eras when China was at its peak, has produced countless household names and tales.

I was first exposed to those days in my history classes in junior high school. From what I learned, Ming set itself apart from the preceding periods economically and politically. Founded by a man who started off as a farmer, it placed agriculture above commerce. It also saw unprecedented concentration of power in the hands of its emperors. I wanted to know more lesser-known facts and anecdotes not taught at school.

The Ming era is the epitome of China and its thousands of years of civilization. And it is incumbent upon every history lover to know and appreciate it, be it its glorious moments or darkest hours. Take Zhu Yuanzhang for example. Before, he was only known to me as a wise emperor who established the Ming Dynasty. Later I got to know more about his extraordinary life, from his humble start as a farmer to a monk, to a rebel soldier rising to the rank of general and uniting the nation, and everything in between. With its fascinating details and colorful characters, the Ming dynasty is surely a can't-miss for me.

中文思路:

明朝是我非常感兴趣的一段历史时期。它距今已经有几百年了。<mark>明朝是我国最鼎盛的朝代之一。期间不</mark> 仅发生了一些的著名事件,还产生了很多人们所熟知的英雄人物。

我第一次学习这段历史是在初中的历史课上。通过课堂和教材,我了解到明朝的开国皇帝是农民出身,因此明朝非常重视农业轻视商业。不仅如此,明代皇帝的权利也达到了一个新的高度。这些制度都是之前的朝代所没有过的。我希望了解更多不为人知的历史细节和趣事。

明朝的历史更像是偌大中国,几千年历史的缩影。而它的荣耀、黑暗都是我们每一个历史爱好者所应该 了解与接受的。以前我只知道朱元璋建立了明朝,他是一个非常英明的皇帝。但后来我了解到朱元璋传 奇的一生。一开始他只是一个普通的农民,后来出家做了和尚,紧接着参加起义并成为了将军,最后竟 然一统天下。期间他经历了何种艰难险阻,他的心态又是如何改变的。这些精彩的历史细节和生动的人 物塑造,让我对明朝非常感兴趣。

《多次阅读的书籍》

Things You Need to Know about the Ming Dynasty is among my favorite books and one that I have read more than once so far. Using plain and witty language, the author presents a vivid account of the lives of legendary figures and the details of famous events, allowing me to have fun while learning about the true history.

This literature has piqued my interest as I've learned in class that Ming, one of the eras when China was at its peak, has produced countless household names and tales. I count myself lucky to have found this book since it offers many lesser-known facts and anecdotes not taught at school, exactly the type of things I was looking for.

The reason Things You Need to Know about the Ming Dynasty has been such a draw for me is that it gives me new insights every time I read it. Take Zhu Yuanzhang for example. Before, he was only known to me as a wise emperor who established the Ming Dynasty. Through the book, I get to see his extraordinary life unfolding before my eyes, from his humble start as a farmer to a monk, to a rebel soldier rising to the rank of general and uniting the nation, and everything in between. With its fascinating details and colorful characters, this literary text is surely a can't-miss for me.

中文思路:

明朝那些事儿是我非常喜欢看的一本书,我至今已经看了不止一次了。这本书用通俗直白,幽默风趣的 文笔,把著名历史人物的一生和耳熟能详的历史事件描绘出来。让我以一种轻松愉快的方式学习和了解 真实的历史。

之所以我对这本书感兴趣,是因为我在历史课上了解到<mark>明朝是我国最鼎盛的朝代之一,期间不仅发生了</mark> 一些的著名事件,还产生了很多人们所熟知的英雄人物。我希望通过这本书了解更多不为人知的历史细 <mark>节和趣事。</mark>幸运的是我确实从这本书里读到了一些课本上没有的东西。

这本书非常有意思,即使我已经看了好几次,但每一次阅读我都会有新的感受。<mark>比如以前我只知道朱元</mark> 璋建立了明朝,他是一个非常英明的皇帝。但书中描绘了朱元璋传奇的一生。一开始他只是一个普通的 农民,后来出家做了和尚,紧接着参加起义并成为了将军,最后竟然一统天下。期间他经历了何种艰难 险阻,他的心态又是如何改变的。这些精彩的历史细节和生动的人物塑造,让我对这本书非常感兴趣。

(十)新开的超市

26-27: 糟糕服务 (新题) & 新开的商店

Describe a time when you received bad service.	Describe a new shop that has opened in your city.
You should say:	You should say:
where and when you received bad service	Where it is
who gave you this bad service	What it sells
what happened	Who goes shopping there
and explain how you felt when you received this bad	And explain how successful you think this new shop
service.	will be.

《糟糕服务》

Not long ago, I went to a newly opened supermarket near my school, but I had a really disappointing experience with their service.

This happened on a weekend afternoon when I suddenly had a craving for cola on my way back to the dorm. So, I decided to stop by this supermarket. I spent quite a bit of time searching for cola in the freezer, but I couldn't find it. I had to approach a sales clerk nearby for help, and to my surprise, she seemed completely oblivious to my presence, engrossed in her smartphone. Only when I got closer did she impatiently inform me that they were out of stock. When I asked about the price of a specific product, her response was equally apathetic. She even told me she didn't know and made no effort to assist me in finding out. To make matters worse, the cashier at the checkout was engaged in a lengthy conversation with a colleague, leaving me waiting for an extended period before I could complete my shopping and pay. The entire shopping experience was extremely unpleasant, and I felt neither respected nor valued.

While this supermarket is the only one near the student dorms, it's no excuse for their lackluster service. This poor service left me thoroughly dissatisfied. It's clear that the staff here have not received proper training, and their attitude and behavior made me feel unwelcome. If they don't strive to enhance the quality of their customer service, I doubt I'll ever shop there again.

中文思路:

不久前,我去了学校附近一家新开的超市。却遇到了糟糕的服务,这令我非常失望。

这次糟糕的服务发生在一个周末下午。我在回宿舍的路上突然想喝可乐,于是我走进了这家超市。我在 冰柜前找了很久都没有发现可乐,只能询问一旁的售货员。令我没想到的是的是,她仿佛没有听见我说 话。一直在低头玩手机。后来我走上前去,她才极其不耐烦的告诉我卖完了。<mark>当我询问关于某个产品的 价格时,她的回应也非常冷淡,竟然回复我说她也不清楚,也不主动帮助我查询。更糟糕的是,结账区 的收银员一直在与同事交谈,我不得不等待很长时间才能完成购物并付款。整个购物过程非常不愉快, 我感到自己没有受到尊重和重视。</mark>

<mark>虽然这家超市是学生宿舍附近唯一的超市,</mark>但是这并不是它不思进取的理由。这次糟糕的服务让我感到 非常不满。<mark>这里的员工明显没有接受过良好的培训,她们的态度和行为让我感到自己很不受欢迎。如果</mark> 他们不试图提高员工服务质量,我想我再也不会去那里购物了。

《新开的商店》

A little while back, there was this new supermarket that opened up near our school. I heard they have some special deals, and it's super close to the school, making it convenient for shopping, so I decided to check it out.

The size of this supermarket isn't very big; it actually feels more like a large convenience store. They mainly sell everyday items, snacks, and drinks. As it is right underneath the student dorms, most of the shoppers here are students from our school.

But maybe because they just started, my shopping experience wasn't that great, to be honest. When I asked an employee there about the price of a specific product, her response was utterly apathetic. She even told me she didn't know and made no effort to assist me in finding out. To make matters worse, the cashier at the checkout was engaged in a lengthy conversation with a colleague, leaving me waiting for an extended period before I could complete my shopping and pay. The entire shopping experience was extremely unpleasant, and I felt neither respected nor valued.

It's clear that the staff here have not received proper training, and their attitude and behavior made me feel unwelcome. If they don't strive to enhance the quality of their customer service, I doubt I'll ever shop there again. I think this store might have a tough time making it, and it might not become popular among the students.

中文思路:

不久前,我们学校附近新开了一家超市。因为听说他们有一些特价商品,而且距离学校很近,方便购物。 我决定去看看。

这所超市的规模不算大,它似乎更像一家大型便利店。主要售卖一些生活用品,零食和饮料。这家超市 就开在学生宿舍楼下,因此来这里购物的都是我们学校的学生。

可能因为他们刚开始营业,事实上我的购物体验相当不好。当我询问关于某个产品的价格时,服务员的 回应非常冷淡,竟然回复我说她也不清楚,也不主动帮助我查询。更糟糕的是,结账区的收银员一直在 与同事交谈,我不得不等待很长时间才能完成购物并付款。整个购物过程非常不愉快,我感到自己没有 受到尊重和重视。

虽然这家超市是学生宿舍附近唯一的超市,但这里的员工明显没有接受过良好的培训,她们的态度和行 为让我感到自己很不受欢迎。如果他们不试图提高员工服务质量,我想我再也不会去那里购物了。 我这家店铺很难取得成功,也并不会受到学生们的喜欢。

(十一) Gucci 围巾

28-29: 昂贵的礼物 & 喜欢穿的衣服

Describe an expensive gift you would like to give to	Describe a piece of clothing that you enjoy wearing
someone.	most.
You should say:	You should say:
What gift you would like to buy	What it looks like
Who you would like to give it to	How often you wear it
How long it would take to save the money	When and where you got it
And explain why you would like to give this	and explain why you enjoy wearing this piece of
expensive gift to this person.	clothing so much.

《昂贵的礼物》

I've had my eyes set on a beautiful Gucci scarf. Emblazoned with the brand's iconic logo, the gray wool item has class written all over it. Exorbitantly pricey as it is, the accessory would make a perfect gift for my BFF, Angela.

My long-time companion, staunchest supporter and close confidant since high school, Angela and I have shared a bond of friendship for six years. We could not have asked for anything more in the company of each other during the three years before college. Now that Angela is about to leave school and join the labor force, it is my sincere hope that a luxury scarf would boost her confidence as she embarks on a new journey of her life.

As a lady of great taste, Angela is a fan of the Gucci brand. I can already see the sparkle in her eyes as they feast on the exquisitely packaged garment. In sending her such an expensive present, I want to convey to Angela how utterly special and loved she is. All the time and effort invested in saving up for this surprise will be worth it if it can put a big smile on Angela's face as she deserves nothing but the best. Taobao: Anxiaoya.

And more than anything, it is the thought that counts. The scarf will serve not only as an embodiment of my appreciation for Angela and our relationship, but also as a reminder of me and my deep love whenever Angela wears it.

中文思路:

我看上了一条漂亮的古驰围巾,<mark>那是一条灰色的羊毛围巾,上面印着 GUCCI 标志性的 logo,看起来非</mark> <mark>常高级。</mark>我想把它送给我最好的朋友 Angela。考虑到它的价格,我可能要花好几个月的时间来攒钱。

我认识 Angela 已经有 6 年时间了,从高中起她就是我最好的朋友。她一直是我的基石和最大的支持者。 我们相互关怀和鼓励,度过了非常美好的高中生活。</mark>现在她快要毕业了,相信一条奢侈品围巾会在工作 中给她带来更多自信。

Angela 一直很有时尚感,她很喜欢 Gucci 的设计。我已经可以想象当她打开包装精美的围巾时会有多开心。送她这么贵的礼物,因为我想让她觉得自己很特别,很受宠爱。虽然我可能需要一些时间和精力来 攒钱买这份豪华的礼物,但想到她收到礼物时脸上露出喜悦的表情,一切都是值得的。她值得拥有最好 的东西,

另外,这不仅仅是价格的问题。更重要它背后的情感意义。这象征着我们的关系以及我对她的爱。每当 她把那条古驰围巾系在脖子上时,她就会想起我,知道我有多在乎她。

《喜欢穿的衣服》

Tucked away inside my wardrobe is a Gucci scarf, one of my most cherished accessories. Emblazoned with the brand's iconic logo, the gray wool item has class written all over it. A perfect match for almost all manner of clothing, I will don the scarf several days a week every spring or fall season.

This luxury item, which came as a real pleasant surprise, is actually a wondrous birthday gift from Angela, a dear friend of mine. My long-time companion, staunchest supporter and close confidant since high school, Angela and I have shared a bond of friendship for six years. We could not have asked for anything more in the company of each other during the three years before college.

I love this scarf not only because it is an expensive luxury item, but also because of its gorgeous design. Delicately soft, the cloth has a tremendously nice feel to it. And more importantly, it looks genuinely classy when paired with a solid-colored coat.

And more than anything, it is the thought that counts. The scarf will serve not only as an embodiment of her appreciation for our relationship, but also as a reminder of her and her deep love whenever I wear it.

我的衣柜里有一条 GUCCI 围巾,这是我最喜欢的配饰之一。<mark>那是一条灰色的羊毛围巾,上面印着 GUCCI 标志性的 logo,看起来非常高级。每到春秋季节,我几乎每周都会有几天带着它。它的款式非常百搭, 各种风格的衣服都和它很相配。</mark>

这条围巾并不是我自己购买的,而是我的好朋友 Angela 送给我的生日礼物。事实上这份昂贵的礼物给 了我很大的惊喜。我认识 Angela 已经有 6 年时间了,从高中起她就是我最好的朋友。她一直是我的基 石和最大的支持者。我们相互关怀和鼓励,度过了非常美好的高中生活。

我喜欢这条围巾,不仅因为它是一件奢侈品,同时我也很喜欢 Gucci 的设计。<mark>它的质地非常柔软,拥有</mark> 非常好的手感。更重要的是它搭配一件纯色的大衣真的看起来很高级。

另外,这不仅仅是价格的问题。更重要它背后的情感意义。这象征着我们的关系以及她对我的爱。每当 我把那条古驰围巾系在脖子上时,我就会想起 angela,知道她有多在乎我。

(十二) 尾波冲浪

30-31: 想尝试的水上运动 & 想尝试的冒险

Describe a water sport you would like to try in the	Describe an exciting adventure you would like to go
future.	on.
You should say:	You should say:
What it is	Who you would go with
Where you would try it	Where you would go
Is it easy or difficult to do	What you would do on the adventure
And explain why you would like to try this water	And explain why you would like to go on this
sport.	adventure.

Surfing is something I've been dying to try as a water sport, and it's super popular among young people. I was first exposed to it through TV shows where they invite celebrities to give it a go, and man, it looks really awesome!

Frankly speaking, surfing is no piece of cake. You gotta wait out there in the ocean for the perfect wave to roll in. And when it finally comes, you gotta hop on your board in a split second and ride that wave like there's no tomorrow. It's a real challenge, testing your balance and skills to the max.

I'm hoping to round up a bunch of my buddies and head to Sanya for some surfing action. I've heard the scenery there is out of this world, with pristine waters and even professional instructors to guide us! I'm not one to enjoy doing sports alone, you know. Trying out and learning a new sport with friends is just way more fun and something to look forward to! Copyright: An xiao ya

I see all these epic surfing videos on social media. Those surfers are just too smooth, catching waves and pulling off insane tricks like it's second nature. I'm all about seeking out new challenges, and surfing seems like such a thrilling and fascinating adventure. I can't wait to give it a shot and become one of those surfers riding the waves like a pro!

中文思路:

冲浪是我非常想尝试的水上运动(冒险,Adventure),它在年轻人中非常受欢迎。我是从电视上上了解 到这项运动的(回答冒险时把这句删掉),很多综艺节目都会邀请明星来体验这项运动,我觉得它看起 来非常酷。

事实上,冲浪学习起来有些困难。我需要在海里等待海浪的到来。当海浪来临的一瞬间,我需要立刻站起来,双脚踩在冲浪板上顺着海浪滑行。这对我来说是一项非常有挑战性的运动,因为冲浪特别考验冲浪者的平衡性和技巧。

我希望我能约上几个好朋友一起去三亚玩冲浪。因为我听说那里的风景特别美,海水特别干净,而且那 里还有专业的教练!我从来都不喜欢独自运动,我认为跟朋友一起尝试和学习一项新运动是非常有趣和 令人期待的!

我经常在社交媒体中看到冲浪视频。冲浪者们实在是太酷了,他们能顺着海浪快速滑行,做出各种高难 度动作。我是一个喜欢挑战新事物的人。冲浪对我来说非常新奇有趣,我很想尝试一下。我希望我以后 能学会冲浪,跟他们一样在海面上驰骋。

32: 爱看的体育运动

Describe a sport that you enjoy watching. You should say: What it is Who you usually watch this sport with Where and when you first watched this sport And explain why you enjoy watching this sport.

Surfing is a sport I really enjoy watching. A few years ago, when I was on vacation in Sanya, I saw some surfers having a blast at the beach. It was my first time witnessing this sport, and I was instantly hooked. In my spare time, I'm always scrolling through Douyin, checking out the awesome surfing videos they recommend. My friends don't really get it, so I'm the only one watching.

Surfing isn't really a big thing in China. I think only a few people actually do it or even watch it. When a wave comes, surfers gotta hop on their board in a split second and ride that wave like there's no tomorrow. Those surfers are just too smooth, catching big waves and pulling off insane tricks like it's second nature. Watching those surfers is so exciting! It's like a scene from an action-packed film. Sometimes I get a bit scared, thinking they might wipe out any second. But guess what? They skillfully navigate through those big waves, one after another.

I'm all about seeking out new challenges, and surfing seems like such a thrilling and fascinating adventure. I could get totally lost watching those surfing videos for an hour, dude. I really wish I could learn to surf and ride those waves like a pro. It would be an amazing experience, cruising on the ocean surface, just me and the waves.

中文思路:

冲浪是我非常喜欢看的一项体育运动。几年前去三亚旅游的时候,我看到一些冲浪爱好者在海边玩。那 是我第一次看到这项运动,当时我就对它产生了浓厚的兴趣。我平时空闲的时候,很喜欢看抖音 app。 抖音经常会给我推荐冲浪相关的视频。我的同学都对这项运动不感兴趣,所以我都是自己看的。

冲浪在中国是一项非常小众的体育运动,我相信只有很少人观看或者进行这项运动。冲浪者需要在海浪 来临的瞬间快速站起来,双脚踩在冲浪板上顺着海浪滑行。因此它具有非常高的观赏性。当海浪特别大 的时候,高超的冲浪者能在海浪中快速滑行,做出各种高难度动作!这看起来非常刺激,就像电影中的 电脑特效一样。我很怕下一秒冲浪者就会被海浪吞没,但事实上他们都能用自己的技巧冲破一道又一道 的大浪。

<mark>我是一个喜欢挑战新事物的人。冲浪对我来说非常新奇有趣,</mark>有时候我沉迷看冲浪的视频,一看就是一 个小时。我希望我以后能学会冲浪,跟他们一样在海面上驰骋。

(十三) 宿管阿姨

33-34: 乐于助人的人 & 受欢迎的人

Describe someone who lives in your area who often	Describe a popular person you know.
help other people.	You should say:
You should say:	How you knew this person
Who this person is	Where and when you usually see this person
How this person helps others	What type of person he/she is
How important the help is	and explain why you think this person is very
And explain why you think this person often help	popular.
other people.	

Our esteemed dorm supervisor, Ms. Huang, embodies the essence of benevolence, endearing herself to every member of our class. Copyright: An xiao ya.

Ms. Huang appears to be in her forties, with an unassuming stature and a plump figure. However, her friendly demeanor makes her approachable and affable. Whenever I enter or leave the dormitory, she can always be found stationed at the entrance, and I am greeted by her warm smile whenever I exchange pleasantries.

Ever vigilant, Ms. Huang tirelessly looks out for the well-being of the students in our dormitory. With much forethought, she established a lost and found board in the foyer, enabling any finder of misplaced belongings to deposit them in her care, allowing her to assist in reuniting them with their rightful owners. Remarkably, I once misplaced my ID card and was overjoyed to find it among the items in Ms. Huang's lost and found. I cannot overstate the debt of gratitude I owe her. Additionally, she possesses a talent for repairing various objects. Be it a faltering lamp or a broken chair, she generously offers her help, fixing them without charge during her spare time.

Although Ms. Huang's acts may seem small, they have had a significant impact on our lives. If it weren't for her locating my ID card, I would have faced great difficulty in taking the high-speed train home. Her boundless compassion and selflessness have left an indelible impression upon me. I consider myself fortunate to have crossed paths with her, and I am confident that my classmates share the same sentiment.

淘宝店铺: 安小雅。我们宿舍楼的宿管黄阿姨是一个乐于助人的人,我身边的同学都很喜欢她。

黄阿姨大概 40 多岁的样子。个子不高,身材胖胖的,看着很和蔼可亲。她基本上整天都会坐在我们宿 舍出入口那里,我每天出入宿舍楼都会看见她。她是个很热情的人,每次我跟她打招呼她都带着真诚的 微笑回应我。

黄阿姨经常帮助宿舍楼的同学们。她立了一块失物招领黑板在宿舍的出入口。但凡有同学捡到别人遗失的物品,她都会无偿地保管并寻找失主。我就曾经遗失了我的身份证,最后神奇地在黄阿姨那里找到了。 对此我非常感谢她。此外她还是一个非常善于修理东西的人。有时候我们的灯或者椅子坏了,她在空闲的时候都会帮我们免费修理。

虽然她做的都是一些小事,但实际上帮我们解决了很大的麻烦。假如那次她没有帮我找回身份证,我甚 至无法做高铁回家。黄阿姨是一个天生热心肠的人,同时她有足够的空闲时间去做这些事并且乐在其中。 我很高性能认识黄阿姨,估计我身边的同学们大多也这么想。

(十四) 捉迷藏

35-36: 玩过的游戏 & 印象深刻的儿时经历

Describe a game you enjoyed playing when you were	Describe a happy experience you remember very well
younger.	from your childhood.
You should say:	You should say:
What it was	How old you were at that time
Where you played it	Who you were with
Who you played this game with	What happened at the time
And explain why you enjoyed playing this game.	And explain why you remember this happy
	experience.

Hide and seek held a special place in my heart during my childhood. It was a simple game that only required a minimum of two participants. The rules were straightforward: one person acted as the seeker while the others hid. Should the seeker successfully locate a hidden player, the latter would be deemed defeated.

Fond memories flood my mind of my early days in primary school when I frequently engaged in spirited hide and seek matches with local children. Our favorite spot was the community park, which offered ample hiding places like slides, bushes, and trees. We would determine the seeker by flipping a coin, and since the park was not very large, the seeker would often find the hiders quickly. Being a fast runner from a young age, I seldom got caught.

I loved this game because I was good at it and it was incredibly fun. When it was my turn to seek, I would sometimes pretend to close my eyes to gain an advantage in locating everyone. Although it could be seen as cheating, it added an extra memorable aspect to the experience. Now that I am grown up, I don't have as much time to engage in games like I used to. Consequently, a wistful nostalgia envelops me, particularly when I pass by that cherished park of my youth.

中文思路:

捉迷藏是我小时候非常喜欢玩的一个游戏。这个游戏很简单,最少只需要2个人就可以玩了。游戏规则 也很简单。一个人充当找寻者,其他人要提前躲起来,被找寻者抓住了就算输。

我记得自己刚上小学的时候,经常和住在附近的小孩一起玩捉迷藏。我们会在社区旁边的公园玩。这个 公园里面有滑梯,草丛,还有很多便于躲藏的地方,非常适合玩捉迷藏。我们会丢硬币决定谁当找寻者。 大多时候寻找者都能很快的找到猎物,因为公园不太大。我从小就跑得快,所以我很少会被抓住!

我很喜欢这个游戏,因为我很容易在游戏中取胜。每当抽到我的当寻找者的时候,我都会假装闭上眼睛, 把大家躲藏的地方看得一清二楚!虽然这很耍赖,但是却让我对这段经历更加印象深刻。现在长大了需 要做的事情变多了,感觉再也没办法跟小时候一样无忧无虑地玩游戏了。所以我非常怀念这段小时候的 经历,尤其是我再路过这个公园的时候。淘宝店铺:安小雅。

(十五) 过年回老家堵车

37-38: 印象深刻的汽车旅行 & 得到错误信息的时刻

Describe a car journey you made that you remember	Describe an occasion when you got some incorrect
well.	information
You should say:	You should say:
When it was	When it was
Who was with you	Where you got the information
How long the journey took	How you found out that the information was not
and explain why you remember this car journey so	correct
well.	And explain what happened when you found out that
	the information was not correct.

Last year, our whole family decided to take a road trip back home for the Spring Festival. It had been three long years since the pandemic hit, so we were really thrilled to finally get to go on a trip. We packed our bags in anticipation, but as soon as we hit the highway, we were met with an infuriating traffic jam!

At that point, I quickly opened up the Amap app to check if there was a faster route. Lo and behold, it showed us that there was a major accident ahead and suggested taking a different route using the national highway. It said that this alternate route could save us over an hour of travel time. So, without hesitation, we changed our course and followed the app's instructions.

But here's where things took a frustrating turn. After driving for quite a while, I realized that Amap had led us astray. The new route it guided us to had a road under construction, making it completely impassable. We had no choice but to turn around and go back to the original route, wasting over two precious hours of our journey.

That false information from the navigation app was incredibly annoying, and it really got under my skin. To make matters worse, we even came across other cars that had fallen into the same trap because of the faulty directions. What was supposed to be a four-hour drive turned into an exhausting journey of nearly seven hours before we finally reached our destination. This experience left a lasting impression on me. It taught me a valuable lesson that when checking routes, it's always wise to use multiple navigation apps and double-check the information before making any decisions!

中文思路:

<mark>去年春节,我们全家人一起开车回老家。</mark>因为疫情的影响,我们已经三年没回乡下了。<mark>我们提前收拾好</mark> 了行李,兴高采烈的出发了。结果我们刚上高速,就遇上了意想不到的大堵车。

这时候我打开高德地图 app 查询是否有更快捷的路线。令我高兴的是,它显示全面发生了严重的交通事 故,如果下高速改走国道。这样能节省一个多小时的时间。无需考虑,我们果断根据导航指示改道出发。 但当我们行驶了很长一段时间后,我发现高德地图给我们指了一条错路。新路线途中有一段路正在施工, 无法通车。最后我们只能调头回去原先的路线,白白的浪费了2个多小时的时间。

这个错误的信息<mark>耗费了我们大量的时间,让我非常生气。</mark>我甚至还遇到了和我们一样因为导航而走错路 的车辆。<mark>本来 4 小时的路程,最终我们花费了将近 7 小时才到达老家。这次的经历让我印象非常深刻。</mark> 这对我来说是一个教训,就是查询路线时最好要用多个软件,反复确认过再下决定!

39: 做重要决定的时刻

Describe a time when you had to make an important decision. You should say: What decision you had to make How you made the decision Why this decision was important And explain whether you think it was a right decision.

Taobao: Anxiaoya. Last year, our whole family decided to take a road trip back home for the Spring Festival. We packed our bags in anticipation, but as soon as we hit the highway, we were met with an infuriating traffic jam!

At that point, I quickly opened up the Amap app to check if there was a faster route. Lo and behold, it showed us that there was a major accident ahead and suggested taking a different route using the national highway. It said that this alternate route could save us over an hour of travel time. At that moment, deciding which road to take became incredibly important as it would directly determine whether we could make it home in time for dinner. After pondering for a while, I made a decision and decided to give the new route a shot. So, we changed our course and followed the app's instructions.

But here's where things took a frustrating turn. After driving for quite a while, I realized that Amap had led us astray. The new route it guided us to had a road under construction, making it completely impassable. We had no choice but to turn around and go back to the original route, wasting over two precious hours of our journey.

It was such a disastrous decision which had wasted a large mount of time and got under my skin. What was supposed to be a four-hour drive turned into an exhausting journey of nearly seven hours before we finally reached our destination. This experience left a lasting impression on me. It taught me a valuable lesson that when checking routes, it's always wise to use multiple navigation apps and double-check the information before making any decisions!

中文思路:

<mark>去年春节,我们全家人一起开车回老家。我们提前收拾好了行李,兴高采烈的出发了。结果我们刚上高</mark> 速,就遇上了意想不到的大堵车。

这时候我打开高德地图 app 查询是否有更快捷的路线。令我高兴的是,它显示全面发生了严重的交通事故,如果下高速改走国道。这样能节省一个多小时的时间。这时候走哪条路显得至关重要,它直接决定着我们能否按照计划回家吃晚饭。我思考了一会儿,决定尝试一下新路线。我们根据导航指示改道出发。 但当我们行驶了很长一段时间后,我发现高德地图给我们指了一条错路。新路线途中有一段路正在施工, 无法通车。最后我们只能调头回去原先的路线,白白的浪费了2个多小时的时间。

这个决定无疑是错误至极的,<mark>它耗费了我们大量的时间,让我非常生气。本来 4 小时的路程,最终我们</mark> 花费了将近 7 小时才到达老家。这次的经历让我印象非常深刻。这对我来说是一个教训,就是查询路线 时最好要用多个软件,反复确认过再下决定!

(十六) 大唐不夜城

40-41: 人山人海之地 & 迷路

Describe a time when you went to a place where there	Describe a time when you lost your way.
were a lot of people.	You should say:
You should say:	When it was
Who you went to this place with	Where you went
What was happening in this place	How you got lost
Why there were so many people there	And explain what happened after you lost your way.
And explain how you felt about being in a place with	
so many people.	

《人山人海之地》

Copyright: An xiao ya During the May Day holiday this year, I got around to checking one more item off my bucket list: a long-anticipated trip in the company of my good friend Angela to Xi'an, one of the top travel destinations in China today.

High on the agenda of our first day in this dazzling land was a visit to the legendary Great Tang All Day Mall, a mega shopping district built in the traditional Tang Dynasty style, and the city's hottest tourist attraction. The anticipated boom in tourism saw a great variety of special themed activities spring up in Xi'an, among which were all manner of street performances graciously put on for free for people out celebrating at night.

In order to get a view of the Mall in its full glory, while also not missing out on the shows, I decided to head out to the premises after dinner. But apparently, I was not alone in figuring out that a night-time tour would be more worthwhile. The place and the surrounding area were bursting at the seams. From the moment I stepped out of the subway station, I was forced to follow the crowd at an agonizingly slow pace. As if that wasn't bad enough, all the scheduled performances were called off for safety reasons.

The Grand Tang Mall is easily one of the most beautiful sights I have ever seen. But over-crowding was such an issue that I found my experience exceedingly depressing. There was no stable cellphone coverage, and with the throng, I didn't even manage to take one decent picture.

中文思路:

今年五一假期,我和我的好朋友 Angela 一起去了西安旅行。西安是当下中国最火的旅行目的地之一, 这趟旅行我已经期待了很长一段时间。

到达西安的第一天,我们决定传说中的大唐不夜城。大唐不夜城是模仿唐代修建的一个大型的步行街, 也是西安最热门的景点。恰逢五一假期,大唐不夜城推出特别的主题活动,到了晚上步行街上会有各种 各样免费的街头表演。

或许所有的游客都有和我一样想法,我觉得晚上的大唐不夜城景色会更美,还有可以观看演出。因此我 选择了晚饭后前往。<mark>但我没想到的是,晚上的人实在是太多了。刚出地铁站马路就被挤的水泄不通。我</mark> 甚至无法选择方向,只能跟着人流慢慢往前移动。</mark>更令我感到失望的是,由于游客太多,景区出于安全 考虑,取消了当晚所有的演出。

我不得不承认,大唐不夜城是我去过最美的地方之一。但是人多实在是影响旅游体验,我感到非常的压

抑。当时我的手机都没有信号了,我甚至没有拍到一张满意的照片,因为照片的背景实在是太杂乱了。

《迷路》

During the May Day holiday this year, I got around to checking one more item off my bucket list: a longanticipated trip in the company of my good friend Angela to Xi'an, one of the top travel destinations in China today.

High on the agenda of our first day in this dazzling land was a visit to the legendary Great Tang All Day Mall, a mega shopping district built in the traditional Tang Dynasty style, and the city's hottest tourist attraction. The anticipated boom in tourism saw a great variety of special themed activities spring up in Xi'an, among which were all manner of street performances graciously put on for free for people out celebrating at night.

However, the place and the surrounding area were bursting at the seams. From the moment Angela and I stepped out of the subway station, we were forced to follow the crowd at an agonizingly slow pace. Before we knew it, we were forcibly separated by the constant stream of visitors, and Angela was nowhere to be seen. Having never been here before, I was completely lost. I tried to check my GPS, only to find that there was no cellphone coverage in the area due to heavy foot traffic.

After a moment of panic, I managed to find my way out of the crowd and into a relatively open space. I restarted my cellphone and was lucky enough to locate my position despite the poor coverage. The navigation software had really come through for me this time.

<mark>今年五一假期,我和我的好朋友 Angela 一起去了西安旅行。西安是当下中国最火的旅行目的地之一,</mark> 这趟旅行我已经期待了很长一段时间。

到达西安的第一天,我们决定传说中的大唐不夜城。大唐不夜城是模仿唐代修建的一个大型的步行街, 也是西安最热门的景点。恰逢五一假期,大唐不夜城推出特别的主题活动,到了晚上步行街上会有各种 各样免费的街头表演。

<mark>但我没想到的是,晚上的人实在是太多了。刚出地铁站马路就被挤的水泄不通。我甚至无法选择方向,</mark> <mark>只能跟着人流慢慢往前移动。</mark>走着走着,我发现 Angela 不见了,我们被人流冲散了。这对我来说是一个 完全陌生的地方,我迷失了方向。我拿出手机想看看导航软件,但这里竟然由于人多没有手机信号!

那一瞬间我慌了神,冷静下来之后,我努力的从人流中走出来,走到了一个相对空旷的地方。然后把我 的手机关机后重新开机。令我庆幸的是,重新开机后我的手机有信号了。虽然网络不太稳定,但我可以 看到自己的位置了。当我迷路的时候,导航软件实在是太好用了。

(十七) 春节包饺子

42-43: 和小孩相处的时刻 & 喜欢的传统庆祝活动

Describe a time when you spent some time with a	Describe a traditional celebration you enjoy in your
child.	country.
You should say:	You should say:
Who the child was	What it is
Why you spent time with this child	Who you celebrate with
When it was	What you do in this celebration
And explain how you felt about spending time with	And explain why you enjoy this traditional
this child.	celebration.

《和小孩相处的时刻》

A few years ago, during the Spring Festival, my sister and I spent an entire afternoon making dumplings. Making dumplings is a traditional custom in China. During many important festivals, people will honour the date by celebrating in this manner.

On the eve of the Lunar New Year, my family gathered to make dumplings. We divided the tasks amongst the family. My mum prepared the dumpling wrappers, my dad was responsible for cutting vegetables, and I was the one who finally formed the dumplings. My sister is much younger than me, being only 6 years old at the time. She thought it was so much fun to make dumplings, so she asked me to teach her. But let me tell you, it was quite a challenge for a little kid. I tried teaching her for a long time, but she just couldn't get the hang of it. The dumplings she made were all different shapes, and they would burst when we boiled them. I didn't know what to do, so when she went to watch TV, I secretly fixed the dumplings for her. Finally, after all my hard work, my sister got to enjoy the dumplings she made with her own hands. She was so happy and excited, gushing to me about how she had just figured out how to make dumplings!

To be honest, I really love spending time with my sister, even though there's a big age gap between us. This activity brings our family closer together. It is wonderful and delightful to eat dumplings which we have made with our own hands. Normally, we are very busy, and there are seldom opportunities for everyone to get together. Perhaps what I cherish the most are not the dumplings, but rather the rare reunion.

中文思路:

好几年前的一个春节,我和我妹妹花了一个下午的时间来包饺子。<mark>包饺子是中国很多地方的传统习俗。</mark> <mark>饺子承载着我们对于来年的美好期望。</mark>淘宝店铺:安小雅。

年三十的时候我们全家人一起在家里包饺子。妈妈负责做饺子皮,爸爸负责切菜,我就负责包饺子。我 妹妹年纪比我小很多,当时她才6岁。她觉得包饺子很好玩,就让我教她。然而这对于一个小孩来说显 然有些困难,我教了她很久,她都学不会。她包出来的饺子形状各异,而且一煮就会炸开。我拿她没办 法,只能趁她去看电视的时候,帮她重新加工一下饺子。最后,在我的努力下,妹妹如愿的吃上了自己 亲手包的饺子。她非常开心的跟我说她已经学会包饺子了!

事实上我很喜欢和我的妹妹在一起,虽然我们的年龄差距很大。<mark>包饺子让我们一家人拉近了彼此之间的</mark> <mark>距离。对我妹妹来说,吃到自己亲手包的饺子是一件非常有成就感的事。平时大家都很忙,所有人能聚</mark>

在一起是非常难得的。或许我珍惜的并不是饺子,而是这一份难得的团圆。

《喜欢的传统庆祝活动》

Making dumplings is a traditional custom in China. During many important festivals, people will honour the date by celebrating in this manner. Dumplings are an essential dish, found on every dinner table in northern China during the New Year's festival. Making and eating dumplings together, primarily in northern China, has become a fundamental activity for the majority of families during the Spring Festival.

On the eve of the Lunar New Year, my family will gather to make dumplings. The tasks are divided between the family. My mum will prepare the dumpling wrappers, my dad is responsible for cutting vegetables, and my grandpa and I will just have a seat and form the dumplings while watching TV.

In China, we believe that dumplings contain our good fortunes for the coming year. My mum will always choose one dumpling to hide a coin inside of. It is thought that whoever eats the dumpling that contains the coin is the luckiest person and shall be extremely fortunate in the following year.

I adore this activity with all my heart. It brings our family closer to each other. It is wonderful and delightful to eat dumplings which we have made with our own hands. Normally, we are very busy, and there are seldom opportunities for everyone to get together. Perhaps what I cherish the most are not the dumplings, but rather the rare reunion.

中文思路:

包饺子是中国很多地方的传统习俗,在很多重要的节日,人们都会用这种方式来庆祝。饺子是北方人年 夜饭桌上必不可少的一道菜。主要是在中国北方,包饺子、吃饺子,已经成为大多数家庭过年的一个重 要活动。

<mark>在大年三十的时候,我们全家人都会聚在一起包饺子。我的妈妈负责做饺子皮,爸爸负责切菜,</mark>我和爷 爷奶奶会坐在电视机前。一边看电视一边包饺子。

<mark>饺子承载着我们对于来年的美好期望。</mark>我的妈妈总喜欢在所有饺子中选出一只,给里面放一枚硬币。谁 吃到有硬币的饺子,就代表他是最幸运的人,接下来会有好运气。

我非常喜欢这项活动,<mark>他让我们一家人拉近了彼此之间的距离。吃到自己亲手包的饺子是一件非常有成</mark> 就感的。平时大家都很忙,所有人能聚在一起是非常难得的。或许我珍惜的并不是饺子,而是这一份难 得的团圆。

(十八) 有趣的邻居

44-45: 有趣的邻居 & 最近搬家的人

Describe an interesting neighbor.	Describe someone you know who has recently moved
You should say:	into his/her own accommodation
What do he/she do	You should say:
How you met this neighbor	Who this person is
How often you see this neighbor	Why this person moved into this accommodation
And explain why you think this neighbor is	What kind of accommodation this person moved to
interesting.	And explain whether you think this move was a
	positive change for this person.

《有趣的邻居》

I must say my neighbour Angela is really fun to hang out with. We have lived in the same neighbourhood for a while now, initially getting to know each other while walking our dogs, a Poodle for me and a Pomeranian for her. Angela is retired and, judging by her looks, could easily be in her sixties. With several chance encounters in the elevator each week, we gradually turned from strangers to acquaintances.

A joyful soul with a warm, caring heart, this kind, generous lady treats her pet the way she would a child. I learned during a conversation with her that there was a time when every dog-walking session was a hassle and scary for Angela, as she used to live downtown in a community unequipped with elevators and surrounded by roads with heavy traffic. For its large, dog-friendly open space and ease of movement up and down stairs, Angela moved to her current address after retiring.

What is most interesting about Angela is the fact that she talks to her dog as if it understands her! She says to the animal things like "This way, baby. Avoid the mud.", which I always find tremendously amusing.

中文思路:

我认为我的邻居 Angela 是个非常有趣的人。我和 Angela 住在同一个小区,我们是遛狗的时候认识的。 她是一位退休老人,看起来很年长,我猜可能有 60 多岁了。当我在家的时候,我每周都会在电梯里遇 见她好几次,渐渐的我们两个就熟悉了起来。我们家养了一只贵宾犬,而她养了一只博美。

Angela 是个善良又有趣的人。她非常有爱心,对自己的宠物就像孩子一样。有一次我跟她聊天的时候,她告诉我她以前住在市中心没有电梯的房子。家附近是车水马龙的道路。她每次遛狗都得小心翼翼担惊受怕的。退休后她就搬到了我们的小区来,因为我们小区有大片适合遛狗的草地,而且房子都有电梯,方便她和她的狗上下楼。而最令我感到有趣的是,她下楼遛狗的时候总是跟狗说话,仿佛她的狗能听懂一样。比如,当她的小狗在路上踩到泥浆时,她会耐心的跟她的狗说"宝贝那里很脏的,走这边"。每次我看见她跟她的小狗说话时,我都觉得有趣极了。

《最近搬家的人》

I must say, my neighbour Angela, who moved into my community last year, is really fun to hang out with. We got to know each other while walking our dogs, a Poodle for me and a Pomeranian for her. Angela is retired and, judging by her looks, could easily be in her sixties. With several chance encounters in the elevator each week, we gradually turned from strangers to acquaintances.

Our neighbourhood is located by the river, a small stretch away from the city centre. Sure, we don't have all the bells and whistles of the downtown area, but the natural beauty here is incredible. It's a really great place to call home. I learned during a conversation with Angela that there was a time when every dog-walking session was a hassle and a challenge for her, as she used to live downtown in a community unequipped with elevators and surrounded by roads with heavy traffic. For its large, dog-friendly open space and ease of movement up and down stairs, Angela moved to her current address after retiring.

It is obvious from her frequent expressions of unadulterated adoration for the new neighbourhood that the decision to move has most definitely turned Angela's life around. For a person her age, easy access to elevators means greater ease of movement. Caring and loving as she is, Angela treats her pet like a baby, making her a perfect addition to our dog-friendly community.

中文思路:

我的邻居 Angela 是去年才搬过来的,<mark>她是个非常有趣的人。我们是遛狗的时候认识的。她是一位退休</mark> 老人,看起来很年长,我猜可能有 60 多岁了。当我在家的时候,我每周都会在电梯里遇见她好几次, 渐渐的我们两个就熟悉了起来。我们家养了一只贵宾犬,而她养了一只博美。

我们小区位于离市中心有一段距离的江边,虽然这里没有丰富的商业设施,但是自然环境非常好。我觉得很宜居。有一次我跟她聊天的时候,她告诉我她以前住在市中心没有电梯的房子。家附近是车水马龙的道路。她每次遛狗都得小心翼翼担惊受怕的。退休后她就搬到了我们的小区来,因为我们小区有大片适合遛狗的草地,而且房子都有电梯,方便她和她的狗上下楼。

我认为搬家对 angela 来说绝对是一项积极的改变。她不止一次跟我说过她非常喜欢这个新社区。对于一个退休老人来说,有电梯的房子会极大的方便她的出行。另外,她非常有爱心,对自己的宠物就像孩子一样。我们的社区对狗狗来说是非常友好的。

(单独话题)

46: 理想之家

Describe your idea of a perfect house. You should say: Where it would be What it would be like How special it would be And explain why it would be perfect for you.

When most people consider their perfect houses, a common answer would be a villa or a duplex apartment. But here, I would have to disagree with the majority and say that my ideal home would be an apartment with a spacious balcony. I believe there is nothing more comfortable than having access to a roomy balcony in one's own home.

If I could have it my way, I'd want to live in an open area with fantastic views, by a river or a lake for instance. As someone with a keen sense of my surroundings, having beautiful sights close by would truly brighten up my day. I would be able to fill the balcony with plants and flowers, including both common small potted plants as well as larger and more exotic tropical plants. I could even install a hammock suspended from the roof of the balcony, as there are seldom things more pleasant than reclining on a hammock and savoring an afternoon tea when the weather is favorable.

In addition to being a place for respite and relaxation, my dream house would also serve as an excellent location for partying and festivities with my friends. I will would never be anxious about the lampblack on the grass or the incessant buzzing and harassment of mosquitoes while barbecuing upon the balcony. That's what my perfect house would be.

说到心目中完美的房子,大多数人应该会喜欢大平层或者别墅,而我最喜欢的却是有大露台的房子。我 认为没有什么比一个宽敞的大阳台更让我感觉舒服的地方了。

如果可以的话,我希望这间房子能在一个风景优美且视野开阔的地方,比如说江边或者湖边。我是个非常在乎居住环境的人,如果走出阳台就能看到美景,这会让我心情愉快。我想要一个很大的露台,这样我就可以在阳台上种很多植物。不仅有常见的小盆栽,我还希望有一些大型的热带植物。我甚至想要在阳台的屋顶上装一个秋千。在天气好的时候,没有什么比坐在秋千上享受一顿下午茶更惬意的事情了。

如果我拥有了一间带大露台的房子,阳台除了是我放松休息的地方,更是我和朋友聚会的好选择。在阳台烧烤既不用考虑烤肉的油烟,还不用担心草地上的蚊虫。这实在是太完美了。

47: 公开发言

Describe a time when you had to give a talk to lots of people. You should say: Who you gave this talk to What the talk was about Why you gave this talk And explain how you felt about giving the talk to lots of people.

I'm kind of an introverted person, and I'm not really comfortable speaking in front of a lot of people. The last time I recall was when I had to give a self-introduction in front of my entire class. It was quite a unique experience that has really stuck with me.

It happened on the first day of college. We were all gathered in the classroom in the afternoon, and after the teacher gave us an overview of the school, he asked each of us to take turns going up to the front of the class and introducing ourselves. The idea was to get everyone acquainted with each other as quickly as possible.

Now, I'm a bit on the shy side, so when I heard about this exercise, I got really nervous. At first, as I stood there and looked out at all those eyes staring at me, my mind went completely blank. I stumbled through telling everyone my name, where I'm from, and a few of my hobbies. But it wasn't until I mentioned that I love going shopping and playing mahjong that the whole class burst into laughter. Yeah, I guess my hobbies were a bit different from the others, who were all talking about books and sports. But you know what? Their laughter put me at ease, and I felt more comfortable speaking. Some of my classmates even came up to me after class and asked for my contact info. We ended up creating a chat group, and it's been really cool - we've hung out a few times to play mahjong!

中文思路:

我是个内向的人,生活中我几乎不愿意在很多人面前讲话。最近一次应该是我在全班同学面前做自我介绍的经历,说起来它非常有趣,而且给我留下了深刻的印象。

那是我大学开学的第一天。那天下午,我们全班同学被召集到课室,老师给我们介绍完学校的基本情况 之后,他要求我们每个人轮流上台进行一分钟的自我介绍,试图让大家都尽快熟悉起来。

我是个比较腼腆的人,听到这个任务我非常紧张。刚开始的时候,看着台下那么多双眼睛一起看着我, 我的大脑一片空白。我结巴着跟大家说了我的名字,我的家乡,还有我的兴趣爱好。直到我告诉大家我 喜欢逛街和打麻将时,全班同学都笑了。因为其他人讲的都很正式,都说自己喜欢看书或者运动。似乎 只有我的爱好与众不同。但也是因为如此,大家的笑声缓解了我的紧张,后面我继续说的时候感觉轻松 多了。下课后还有几个同学都主动加我微信,我们还因此组建了一个聊天群。在以后的课余生活中,我 们约着去打了好几次麻将!

48: 令你失望的电影

Describe a film you saw recently that you found disappointing. You should say: What kind of film it was What it was about Why you decided to watch this film And explain why you found this film disappointing.

Recently, I checked out this mystery comedy film called "Detective Chinatown 2". It tells the story of Tang Ren, who tricks his buddy Qin Feng into a journey to New York for a global detective competition that promises a massive cash prize. As they try to track down a murderer, they stumble upon an even bigger secret behind the whole challenge.

I decided to give this movie a shot because I'm a fan of the Detective Chinatown series. Since the second installment featured the same director and cast as the first one, I was curious to see how the plot would unfold. I was expecting a fun detective story with lots of humor and clever plot twists, but man, was I disappointed.

The comedy in the film felt forced and repetitive, making it pretty awkward at times. And as for the whole detective deduction thing? It lacked originality because I could practically guess who the killer was as soon as they showed up on screen. Even the final twist didn't surprise me in the least. It seemed like the director was more focused on creating visually stunning scenes rather than crafting a solid, engaging storyline.

Overall, "Detective Chinatown 2" didn't live up to my expectations. It didn't have that gripping story like the first film did. It's more like a run-of-the-mill comedy you watch on family movie nights. It's a shame when a highly-anticipated blockbuster falls short, and sequels often end up leaving you disappointed.

中文思路:

最近,我看了一部悬疑喜剧《唐人街探案 2》,电影讲述了主角唐仁为巨额奖金,欺骗好朋友秦风到纽约参加世界侦探大赛的故事。他们在寻找杀人凶手的过程中,却发现了隐藏在这次挑战背后的更大秘密。

我决定看这部电影,因为唐人街探案系列是我非常喜欢的作品。第二部从导演到演员都和第一部相同, 因此我对故事的前提很感兴趣。我期待着一个充满诙谐幽默和巧妙情节转折的侦探故事。

然而,我发现这部电影令我失望。整部电影的笑点让人觉得非常尴尬,他们是强迫的和重复的。故事的 推理同样缺乏新意,凶手一出来,我就猜到他是凶手了。包括最后的反转,也没有带给我多少惊喜。导 演似乎更专注于创造视觉上令人惊叹的场景,而不是发展一个坚实的故事情节。

总的来说,《唐人街探案 2》没有达到我的期望。它并不像第一部那样讲述了了一个引人入胜的故事,它 只适合一家人一起当做普通喜剧来看。一部有潜力的电影拍得不尽如人意是很不幸的,同时,不是每部 电影都能大获成功,续集往往会令人感到失望。

49: 电脑出问题(新题)

Describe a problem you had when using a computer. You should say: what it was when and where you had this problem how the problem was solved and explain how you felt when you had this problem.

When I consider the experience of computer failure, I am reminded I suffered from one not long ago. At the terminus of last term, I was playing games with my classmates. Shortly after the game commenced, my computer abruptly broke down. The computer screen unexpectedly turned to black and the display was blank. This made me very chagrined.

I thought it was nothing other than a computer crash and resolved to restart it, but this produced no effect. My roommate Anna said that there was a high chance this was hardware damage and advised that I go to the computer repair place to have my device examined. Copyright by Anxiaoya.

So, I brought my computer to a computer city in the vicinity. The shopkeeper informed me that the cause of my computer breakdown was a corrupt graphics card that had burnt out. It was essential that I got the graphics card repaired or bought a new one. I suddenly recalled the insurance that was included with the purchase of my computer and immediately called the customer services. The after-sales service told me that any hardware problem within one year can be replaced free of charge, all that was required of me was to send the card to them. I was relieved to hear such welcome news.

It was frustrating when my computer abruptly broke down, but I was glad I took out the extended warranty service. Otherwise, I may have been encumbered with a one thousand Yuan bill to repair it. It was a lesson to me that insurance can indeed relieve one of the costs of many of life's risks.

中文思路:

说起电脑坏掉的经历,不久前我刚好经历过一次。上学期期末的时候,我正和同学在一起打游戏,游戏 刚开始不久,我的电脑突然坏掉了。在正常使用的情况下,电脑屏幕突然黑屏了,什么也显示不出来。 这令我非常懊恼。

我以为只是电脑死机,想尝试重启,但是无论我怎么操作都毫无反应,我的电脑无法开机。舍友 Anna 说这种情况可能是硬件损坏,建议我去电脑维修的地方看看。

趁着还没下班,我拿着电脑来到了我附近的电脑城。店主检测后告诉我显卡烧坏了,所以才无法开机。 这种情况需要更换新的显卡才能使用。我想到了买电脑时购买的附加保险,立即打电话咨询了售后。售 后告诉我两年内有硬件问题都可以免费更换,只要我把电脑邮寄过去就行。听到答案后我终于放心了。

电脑突然坏掉是令人懊恼的,但庆幸的是我购买了延保服务。否则我可能需要承担近千元的修理费用。 适当的购买保险确实可以分担生活中的很多风险。

50: 喜欢烹饪的人 (新题)

Describe a person who enjoys cooking for others. You should say: who he/she is how you knew this person who he/she usually cooks for and explain why you think he/she enjoys cooking for other people.

My grandmother is an ardent cook, and her culinary skills are truly exceptional, surpassing the quality of some upscale restaurants. I've always considered her the pride of our family. I've lived with my grandmother since I was born, so I have had a strong bond with her since then. She is a kind and energetic elderly woman.

In fact, my grandmother cooks every day, but her favorite moments are when she prepares meals for the entire family during special holidays. In my opinion, these are her best opportunities to showcase her culinary talents. She believes that preparing a delicious meal for her loved ones is the ultimate expression of care. Whenever our whole family gathers, whether it's a holiday or an ordinary day, my grandmother meticulously prepares a variety of delectable dishes. She enjoys experimenting with various recipes, including traditional home-cooked meals and innovative cooking methods.

The elderly often experience loneliness after retirement, and having a hobby they are passionate about can greatly enrich their lives. Cooking serves this purpose for my grandmother. Her deep love for cooking for others stems from her view of it as a way to express emotions. She often says that seeing her family enjoy the dishes she prepares brings her the greatest satisfaction and joy. Furthermore, my grandmother believes that traditional family gatherings play a crucial role in strengthening family bonds and intimacy.

中文思路:

我的奶奶是一个非常喜欢做饭的人,她做的菜堪称一绝,比一些高级餐厅都要更好吃。我一直觉得奶奶 是我们家的骄傲。我从出生起就生活在奶奶家。因此我从小就认识她了。她是一个慈祥而充满活力的老 人。

事实上,奶奶每天都会做饭,但她最喜欢的还是在重大的节日里为全家人做饭。在我看来,这是她展示厨艺的最好机会。她认为为家人做一顿美味的饭菜是表达关爱的最佳方式。每当我们全家聚在一起,无论是节日还是平日,奶奶都会精心准备各种美味的菜肴。她喜欢尝试各种食谱,包括传统的家常菜和新奇的烹饪方式。

老人在退休后通常是很孤独的,这时候拥有一项自己感兴趣的爱好,能够很大程度充实她们的生活。做 饭对于我的奶奶就是这样的存在。奶奶之所以如此热爱为别人做饭,是因为她将烹饪视为一种表达情感 的方式。她常常说,看到家人享受她做的美食,是她最大的满足和快乐来源。此外,奶奶也认为传统的 家庭聚餐对于增进家庭的凝聚力和亲密度非常重要。

51: 钦佩的运动员(新题)

Describe a successful sportsperson that you admire, You should say: who this person is what he/she has achieved what you know about his/her life and explain why you admire this sportsperson.

To be quite frank, I don't care much about sports. I have had very little interest in sports ever since I was a young child. However, I am still aware of some of the most famous athletes, the most impressive of which I believe to be Cristiano Ronaldo.

Cristiano Ronaldo is a football player with flowing blond hair. What I know about him is limited to what I've seen in the media, including news and advertisements. He is incredibly handsome and has a bright and captivating smile. It is for these reasons that he initially impressed me so much. If my memory serves me correctly, he was Nike's sneaker ambassador, and over a period of time, you could see him in adverts at bus stops and subways across the city.

After some time, I became intrigued about the man within the adverts, and I searched for information about him on the Internet. I found that not only did he have a beautiful and charming image, but he was also a world class football player. His talent and skill have awarded him many football prizes and he has won many competitions. He is an incredibly talented athlete, but he is also very diligent and self-disciplined. It is a common case for a lot of talented players to start to slack off and indulge themselves after they become famous, which results in their competitive state to decline very quickly. But Ronaldo is very strict with himself, stringently following the athlete's standard diet, and never consuming junk food. During the holidays, he continues going to gym without fail. It is for these reasons that I admire him so much.

中文思路:

事实上,我是个不太关注体育的人,我从小就不喜欢运动。但我还是知道一些知名运动员的,其中印象 最深的应该就是 C 罗了。淘 宝: 安 小 雅。

C 罗是一名足球运动员,个子很高,金发飘飘的。我对他的了解仅限于媒体上看到的新闻和广告。从我 第一次看见他,我就觉得他长得很帅,而且笑起来很阳光。这也是我对他印象很深刻的原因。如果我没 记错的话,他是耐克的球鞋代言人,有那么一段日子,公交站牌和地铁上都是他的拍的广告。

后来我对他产生了很大的好奇,就在网上搜他的资料。我发现他不但形象很好,足球也踢得很棒。他拿 过很多足球的大奖以及比赛的冠军。他是个很有天赋的运动员,同时也非常勤奋和严于律己。我知道不 少有天赋的球员,但他们往往在成名后就懒散和放纵自己,导致他们的竞技状态下滑地很快。但C罗非 常严于律己,严格按照运动员的标准饮食,从不吃垃圾食品。假期里他都坚持每天健身锻炼,从不停歇。 这应该也是我非常崇拜他的原因。